Floor 2, Enterprise Centre,

M S I< Q Nehru Road, Near Domestic Airport,
Vile Parle (E), Mumbai - 400 099, INDIA

Tel.: +91 22 3358 9700

& Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone ind AS financial statements of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”) (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”) (continued)

in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March,
2018, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of

account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 315 March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in

‘Annexure A’,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”) (continued)

(2) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Notes 25 and 47 to the standalone ind AS
financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

2.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure B’, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For MSKA & Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Associates)

Chartered Accountants

l Firm Registratio @ 105047W

Vishal V(Ias Divadkar
Partner
Membership No. 118247

Place : Mumbai
Date : 9% May, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVOCO VISTAS CORPORATION LIMITED (FORMERLY “LAFARGE INDIA
LIMITED”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the
“Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registratiom\No. 105047W

“\ WO
Vishal\Vilas Divadkar
Partner

Membership No118247

Place : Mumbai
Date : 9t May 2018




Floor 2, Enterprise Centre,

Nehru Road, Near Domestic Airport,
Vile Parle (E), Mumbai - 400 099, INDIA
Tel.: +91 22 3358 9700

MSKA

& Associates

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited on
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018]

i.

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details

and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The management has a planned programme for verifying fixed assets once in every three years,
which in our opinion is reasonable having regards to the size and nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year
since the same were verified in FY.2015-16 in accordance with the plan.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties other than self-constructed

building are held in the name of the Company except for few freehold lands as under:-

In case of Land:-

No. of | Leasehold/ Gross Block as at [ Net Block as at | Remarks
cases | Freehold 31t March, 2018 | 31%t March, 2018
(Amount in Rs. [ (Amount in Rs.
Cores) Cores)
1 | Leasehold Land 7.10 7.10
4 | Freehold Land 213.46 200.06 Out of this we have
not been made
available original
title deeds

aggregating to Rs.
14.13 Crores

ii.  The inventory (excluding stocks with third parties) has been physically verified by the management
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. In respect of inventory
lying with third parties, these have been substantially been confirmed by them. No material
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records.

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of

the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to

(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom
the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act. Further, in
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans and
advances given, investments made and guarantees given by the Company in accordance with
section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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vi.

vii.

()

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account relating to materials, labour and other items of
cost maintained by the company pursuant as specified by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act related to manufacture
of cement, ready mix concrete and aggregates and we are of the opinion that prima facie the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate
authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any
other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which were applicable to the
company were in arrears, as at 31t March, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the Company examined by

us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty and value
added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except for:

Period to
Name of Amount Forum where
the Nature of dues (Rs. in :vn'::f:nt the dispute is ::;rarks,
statute Crores) relates pending
L 2009-10 Various
Central Differential excise duty 84.53 2010 11’ Appell
Excise on MRP value . 201 5'1 6 App: L
Act, 1944 - uthorities
Various Amount is net
Disallowance of Cenvat 18.52 2003-04 to Appellate of protest
credit on goods/services : 2016-17 Azghorities payment made
of Rs. 0.52 Cr
. - Various
crceecuty on Nemsm | 7033 | 2070810 | sgpeiae
Authorities
. Amount is net
Various
. 2010-11  to of protest
Other excise dues 7.80 2015-16 ﬁﬁtp:cl)lr?ttiee . payment made
of Rs. 0.68 Cr
2000-01, .
Central 2003-04  to | Various o protet
Central Sales Tax 5.02 2007-08 and | Appellate
Sales Tax 2010-11  to | Authorities | Payment made
Act, 1956 2014-15 of Rs. 6.09 Cr
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Various . Amount is pet
Various
State 1999-2000 to of protest
Sales Tax Sales Tax 21.51 2013-14 ﬁﬂ?:our?ttiee s payment made
Act of Rs. 18.74 Cr
Various . Amount is net
Various
State 2005-06 to of protest
VAT Tax Value Added Tax 192.93 2014-15 ﬁﬂgﬁéﬁttiees payment made
Act of Rs. 4.97 Cr.
The Assistant
1996-97 to | Commissioner
Customs | Custom Duty 14.44 1998-99 Customs,
Act, 1961 Mumbai
. Service Tax liability on Various
Finance : 2005-06 to
Act, 1994 income earned from own | 0.96 2016-17 Appellqtg
your wagon Scheme Authorities
Service Tax - Outdoor gggggg ar:g Various 2?1 ount l:otne:
Catering/ Cargo handling | 0.11 2009-10 ¢ Appellate protes
etc. i O | Authorities payment made
2010-11 of Rs. 0.01 Cr.
Addl Amount is net
Service Tax liability on 2010-11  to CL of protest
VSAT charges 177 2014-15 Eglmk?t:swner, payment made
of Rs. 0.12 Cr.

. Amount is net
gr;zrg: ?%'Ei?f :ff Eaexr;/'l;i: 0.32  |2013to2015 | S€rvice ~ Taxjof  protest
services ) authority (HO) | payment made

of Rs. 0.64 Cr.
Service Tax-
Reimbursement of rent .
from parent company on | 0.30 2013-14 :ﬁ;\r/\l:reit (HTS;(
sharing of common y
office space
Amount is net
of payment
made of
Income  Tax | Rs.33.32 Cr.
Income Appellate For the stated
Tax Act, | Income Tax 60.47 2012-13 Tribunal amount, a stay
1961 (ITAT) has been
obtained from
the
jurisdictional
AO.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to the financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

X. During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the

Page 3 of 4
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information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

xi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

xii.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors

or persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MSKA & Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Associates)

Chartered Accounta
irm Registration No 047W

Membership No.118247

Place : Mumbai
Date : 9t May 2018
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ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ia)  Froperty. plant and equipmer- 2 4.909.15 5.087.32 i
(b Caputal work-in-progress 14065 12960 |
W) Investment property A 135 [EEN
iy Goadwill 1 744386 244380
) Other tntangible assets 4 1,335.15 138333
(1 Intangible assets under doe cLapri. 3th 148
(g)  Farcial assets
0 Investments 5 005 003
(1) Loans ] - -
(! Other non-current financial assets 7 51518 35759
thy  Other non current assets R 267 20 19509
9,615.81 9,611.86
CURRENT ASSETS
ta) Inventones 9 430.20 361.04
(b Financial assets
{1} Investments 10 844.37 41219
(1) Trade receivables 1 415.15 44.22
{1i1) Cash and cash equivalents 12 3354 7175
(v} Other bank bkalances 13 5.18 5.18
() Lo 14 0.80 1.99
wv1) Other current financial assets 15 136.08 220.07
(e} Other current assets 16 13825 156.52
2,003.57 1,673.56
TOTAL ASSETS 11,619.38 11,285.42
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
fa)  Equnty share caputal 17 150.00 150.00
1) Other equity 3,967.27 3,798.95
4117.27 3,948.95
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(¢} Financial habihties
[0)] Borrowmgs 18 3,205.69 4,298.46
(1) Other non-current financial hiabilities 19 5097 0.76
(b)  Provisions (non-current) 20 5577 48.65
()  Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 1,181.55 1,224.38
4,493.98 5572.25
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(0] Borrowings 2 1,163.11 15.92
(i1) Trade payables 23 666.43 739.9
(i) Other current financial liabilities 24 424.75 399.60
" Provisions {current) 25 296.47 276.50
€)  Other current hahilities 26 45737 33221
1Y 3,008.13 1,764.22
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,619.38 11,285.42
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1B
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco
Vistas Corporation Limited
For MSKA & Associates (Formerly known as MZSK & Assaciates) CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229
Accountants
Firm Regisiyation No. 105047W
Suketu Nareshbhai
Shah
Director
DIN: 01737515 DIN: 07211283
Vishal Vilas Djvadkar
e
Membership No 118247 Mangégh Agrawal ‘e Ajay §
Chief\Einancial Officer Compai

I"lace : Mumbai
Date : 9 May 2018

Piace : Mumbai
Date : 9 May 2018




Nuvoce Vistas Corporatioa I imited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Standalore Statement of Profit and 1 oss for the year ended 31 March 2018
(A amtnts are an Ry ores iotless ofhieronse stk o)

Particulars Note No. 2017-18 2016-17
—
INCOME
Revenue from operations 27 6,297.23 583246
Other income 28 53.71 29.27
total Imcome 6,350.94 5861.73
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 29 1.223.§5 1,104.12
Purchase of stock in trade 30 7220 2263
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 31 (35.06) 27.59
Power and fuel 1,037.92 847.17
Freight and torwarding charges 1.645.57 1,360.65
Excise duty on sale of goods 203.11 675.48
Employvee benefits expense 32 317.50 289.97
Depreciation and amortization expense 33 391.63 31252
Finance costs 34 42541 231.17
Other expenses 35 843.80 776.48
Total expenses 6,125.24 5,647.78
Profit before exceptional items and tax 225.70 213.95
Exceptional items 53 e (17.81)
Profit before tax 225.70 196.14
Tax expenses: 37
1. Current tax (MAT) 77.08 57.01
2. MAT credit entitlement (11.29) (57.01)
3. Deferred tax (excluding MAT credit entitlement) 46.17 123.75
4. Tax expense relating to earlier years (44.38) (93.28)
Total tax expense 67.58 3047
Profit after tax 158.12 165.67
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (OCI)
I Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
1. Remeasurements gain/(losses) of post-employment benefit obligation 1.51 0.19
ii. Income tax related to above (0.52) {0.07)
0.99 0.12
I Items that will be reclassified to statement of profitand loss
i. Deferred gain/(losses) on cash flow hedge 0.09 0.09
ii. Income tax related to above {0.03) (0.03)
0.06 0.06
Other comprehensive income for the year 1.05 0.18
Total comprehensive income for the year 159.17 165.85
Earnings per equity share 36
1. Basic (Rs.) 137 208
2. Diluted (Rs.) 137 208
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1B
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco
Vistas Corporation Limited
known as MZSK & Associates) CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229
uketu Nareshbhai
Shah
Director
DIN: 01737515 DIN: 07211283
\Vishal Vilas Divadkar
rner e
&
Membership No. 118247 e
Y AN .
Malﬁ Agrawal C Ajay === "
Chief Fifancial Officer Comp %\Stas O
\arge
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai // oo Q 2 r—"‘\\:’% Q\ \
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts e 131 Rs crores, unless otherunse stated)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 22570 196.14
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 391.63 312,52
Net (gain)/ loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (0.48) 0.33
Provision for bad/doubtful debts and advances 10.97 5.50
Provision tor indirect taxes and litigation 10.28 16.20
Provision/liabilities no longer required, written back 47.79) (27.21)
Property, Plant & Equipment/CWIP written off 0.82 7.27
Gain on sale of current investments (26.88) (14.19)
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss (13.90) (2.22)
Bad debts - 0.00
Interest income on bank deposits (1.16) (3.10)
Interest income on others (7.86) 4.15)
Finance costs 425.41 231.17
966.79 718.26

Operating profit before working capital adjustments:
Adjustments for working capital :

(increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (69.16) 97.15
Decrease in trade and other receivables 19.68 73.64
Increase in loans and advances and other non current assets (54.64) (140.18)
Increase in trade / other payables, provisions and other liability 179.20 233.07
1,041.87 981.94

Income tax paid (Net) (90.90) (59.72)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 950.96 922,22

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase and construction ot property, plant and equipment (217.12) (141.37)
Purchase of current investments (3,686.47) (2.366.26)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 3,295.07 1,970.48
Loans/advances given during the year 1.18 1.76
Interest received 5.43 6.44
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (601.91) (528.95)

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Stamp duty on issue of shares (20.79) -
Repayment of borrowings - (300.00)
Interest paid (366.47) (203.49)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (387.26) (503.49)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (38.21) (110.22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 76.93 171.39
Additions through amalgamation - 15.76
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12 and 13) 38.72 76.93

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet

Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet [Note 12 & 13]

Cash on hand 0.05 0.05
Cheques/ drafts on hand 5.59 2.96
Bank balances (including bank deposits) 33.08 73.92

Cash and Cash equivalents at the year end 38.72 76.93




i,_..__.._ ———— — .

Note-

i} Cash and Cash cquivalents at the end of the year includes cash collateral of Rs. 5.18 crores maintained by the Company tor collateral o
disputed indirect tax case.

i1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (Ind \S) 7

Cash Flow
Statements”

ili) Disclosure as required by (IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements" - Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars

2017-18 2016-17
Opening balance 131439 302.50
Non Cash movement
- Borrowings of amalgamating company (Refer note 50) 4,292.53
- Accrual of interest 398.94 205.37
Cash movement
- Principle repayment - (300.00)
- Interest payment (344.52) (186.01)
Closing balance 4,368.81 4,314.39 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco Vistas
Corporation Limited

CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229
rmerly known as MZSK & Associates)

Suketu Nareshbhai Shah

Director
DIN: 01737515 DIN: 07211283
Membership No. 118247 Q/(/(@pe Qe £
Madzesh Agrawal ° Ajay
Chief Financial Officer Company ecretary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 9 May 2018 Date : 9 May 2018
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

A.

b)

Company Information

Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Lafarge India Limited) (“the Company”)
is a limited company domiciled and headquartered in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office is located at Equinox Business Park,
Tower-3, 4th Floor, LBS Marg, Off BKC, Kurla (West), Mumbai — 400070. The Company is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of Cement and Ready Mix along
with trading and manufacturing of Aggregates. The Company caters mainly to the domestic
market.

The financial statement of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2018 was authorized for
issue in accordance with a resolution of Directors on 9th May, 2018.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These are separate financial statements of the Company as per Ind AS 27. The financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

o certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)

¢ defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. It is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, related
discounts, incentives and volume rebates. Revenue for the period 1 April 2017 to 30 June 2017
includes excise duty and excludes value added tax/ sales tax. Revenue for the period 1 july 2017
to 31 March 2018 excludes goods and service tax.

Interest income

For all interest bearing financial assets interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the
statement of profit and loss. E—




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

c) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost, except the freehold land used for mining. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost of the items net of
depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Acquisition cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to getting the asset ready for intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Items of spare parts that meets the definition of ‘property, plant and equipment’ is recognised
as property, plant and equipment. The depreciation on such an item of spare part will begin
when the asset is available for use i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. In case of a spare part, as it
may be readily available for use, it may be depreciated from the date of purchase of the spare
part.

Capital work in progress (‘CWIP’) is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.
All the direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure incurred
during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as CWIP
and after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the respective item of property,
plant and equipment.

Pre-operating costs, being indirect in nature, are expensed to the statement of profit and loss as
and when incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal cr
when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Company has a policy of capitalising overburden cost if the overburden removal exceeds
normal annual overburden removal by more than 50% and the total amount of stripping cost
related to excess removal is more than Rs. 0.50 Crores.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation (other than on mining land) is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost
of assets, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Components having
value significant to the total cost of the asset and life different from that of the main asset are
depreciated over its useful life. The useful lives have been determined based on technical
evaluation which are higher than those specified by Schedule il to the Companies Act; 2013, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The useful lives so determined are as follows:

—

———




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Asset Type Useful life (in years)

Buildings and roads 5to 50

Plant and machinery 1to 30

Railway sidings and locomotives 30

Office equipment 5to 10

Vehicles 5

Furniture and fixtures 510 10

Leasehold land Over the lease period

Mining land Amortised on the unit of production
method based on extraction of limestone
from mines

Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in
proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable
mineral reserves.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year
is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal. Cost of lease-hold
land is amortized equally over the period of lease.

Residual values, useful life of assets and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

d) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the
date of original purchase.

The Company, based on management estimate, depreciates the building over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

e) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits tha
attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be [k
reliably.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

f)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure
isincurred.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives based on
underlying contracts where applicable, except for mining rights

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The useful lives so
determined are as follows:

Asset Type Useful life (in years)

Mining Rights Amortised on the unit of production
method based on extraction of
limestone from mines but restricted
upto the lease period (in case of
Leasehold and Freehold Land)

Supplier agreement (Finite) Upto the validity of the
Contract

Trademark (Finite) 10

Software (Finite) 5

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level, and whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Broups of
Aastas A
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

g)

assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
1. In case of individual asset, at higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use;
and
2. In case of cash-generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent
cash flows), at the higher of the cash-generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and the
value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. In any case the growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth
rate for the products/industries in which the entity operates.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Leases

The determination of whether as arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of the specific asset (or assets) and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or those assets
are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental oblig;@mialatm




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Staridalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

h)

finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is cha rged to
the profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase.

Company as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset till such time the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial
period of time (generally over twelve months) to get ready for its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that a company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad
categories:

1. Financial assets at amortised cost

2. Financial assets at fair value

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized in the statement
of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit and loss) (FVTPL), or recognized in other
comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income) (FVTOCI)




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Financial asset at amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if following two conditions are met:
1. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for coliecting
contractual cash flows, and
2. The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value
Debt instruments
A debt instrument is classified as at FVTOCI if following two conditions are met:
1. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and
2. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instrument included within the fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (oq).

All other investment in debt instruments not measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as
described above are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration, recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at fair value through profit or loss. For
all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election
on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit and loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the fair value through profit or loss category are measured at
fair value with ali changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's statement of
financial position) when:
1. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
2. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or
b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model to the following:
1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
2. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

1. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

2. Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables.

Under the simplified approach, the company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio
of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes mt,hsl’f@
looking estimates are analysed. // o | Aarge 4, ¢
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. if credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
1. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2. Loans and borrowings
3. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrume%;-‘ jal
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guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the lia bility is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new hability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

B. Off-setting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

C. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to
hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OC|
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged,
hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
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)

k)

achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basijs to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the
cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk
in forecast transactions and firm commitments. The ineffective portion relating to foreign
currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to
commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OC| are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial
asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the
foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

The Company accounts for investment in subsidiaries and Joint venture at Cost in its separate
financial statements.

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures:

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures are separated into liability and equity components based
on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible debentures, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible debentures shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
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components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. All the grants related to an expense
item are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When grants relates to an assets it is
recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on the rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the entity operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognised in equity and not
in the statement of profit and loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their corresponding carrying
amounts for the financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:
1. deductible temporary differences;
2. the carry forward of unused tax losses; and
3. the carry forward of unused tax credits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as
current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company
reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to
the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal income tax
during the specified period.

n) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and Net Realisable Value (NRV).

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the actual level of production which
approximates normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Stores, spares and other supplies: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis. Items of stores and spares that does not meet the definition of ‘property, plant
and equipment’ is recognised as a part of inventories.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Net Realisable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

o) Employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised
during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. s
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p)

q)

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to
be made to a separately administered fund. The Company also has additional death benefit
scheme for specific set of employees. This death benefit scheme is unfunded.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit method. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or

asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an

expense in the statement of profit and loss:

® Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

* Netinterest expense or income

Other Long-term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss for the period in which the employee has rendered services. The expenses are recognised at
the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation technique.
Actuarial gains and loss in respect of other long term benefits are charged to the statement of
profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Operating Segment:
The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.
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t)

The Operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services,

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have
been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the
segment. Inter Segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily
determined based on market/fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which
relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocated to segments on a reasonable basis have
been included under "unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities".

Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments:

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
1. A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
2. A present obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
3. A possible obligation arising from the Past events, unless the probability of outflow of
resources is remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit
for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for ali
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues
and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates and assumptions are based
on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial
statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following
notes together with the accounting policies:

Note 37 - Current tax expense

Note 39 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations

Note 51 - Provisions and contingencies

Note 4 — Impairment of assets (both financial and non-financial)
Note 20 - Site restoration provision

Note 42 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Note 2 — Useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Note 4 — Useful life of Other intangible assets

Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
1. Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period
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All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is company's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at functional currency, using the foreign
exchange rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction.

At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
functional currency using the foreign exchange rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of
profit and loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of profit
and loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
1. In the principal market for the asset or liability,
Or
2. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
1. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
Liabilities.
2. Llevel 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
3. Level 3 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Exceptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial statements.

Business combinations under common control
Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or
businesses, between entities within a group.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for
using the pooling of interests method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and
liabilities of the combined entity are reflected at their carrying amounts, the only adjustment
that are made are to harmonize accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business
combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from
that date.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve and presented separately from othet<apital reserves
with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes. N \Shds’ 3
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aa) Rounding off
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule INl, unless otherwise stated. Any amount
appearing as Rs.0.00 represents amount less than Rs.50,000.

bb) Standards issued but not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the
Company

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018):

Ind AS 115 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with
customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:
¢ Identify the contract with the customer;
* ldentify the performance obligations in the contract;
¢ Determine the transaction price;
* Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts;
® Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Guidance is provided on topics such as the point in which revenue is recognised, accounting for
variable consideration, costs of fulfilling and obtaining a contract and various related matters.
New disclosures about revenue are also introduced.

The Company is yet to assess Ind AS 115’s full impact and intends to adopt Ind AS 115 no earlier
than the accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018.

cc) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Company has applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The Company has not early
adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

Amendment to Ind AS 7: Statement of Cash Flows;

The Company has provided disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non cash changes. The Company
has provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in statement of
cash flow.
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(A amounts are i Re crores unless otheraese statedy

3. Investment property

Description Amount
Cost as at 1 April 2016 1.59
Additions
Disposals/transfer =
Cost as at 31 March 2017 (A) 1.59
Additions "
Disposals/transter B
Cost as at 31 March 2018 (C) 1.59
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2016 0.08
Depreciation for the year 0.08
Disposals/ transter ;
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2017 (B) 0.16
Depreciation for the vear 0.08
Disposals/transfer .
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2018 (D) 0.24
Nel carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 (A)- (B) 143
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 (C)- (D) l 1.35

The Company has received independent broker's quote for purchase of the investment property at Rs. 1.59 crores (prev

investment property.

4. Goodwill and Other intangible assets

"Lafarge India Limited")

ious vear Rs. 1.59 crores) which is the fair value of

Other Intangible Assets
S Non :
Descriptio ini i Goodwill
escription Software N!lmlng Trade Mark | Compete ASu: ph:;s' Total
rights Agreement greem

Cost as at 1 April 2016 41,57 20,15 10.00 71.90 - 143.62 1,401.23
Additions 14.55 14.33 - - - 28.88 -
Adjustment due to Business Combination (Refer note 50) - 862.07 496.66 17.78 1,376.51 1,894.27
Disposals/adjustments (0.05) - - - - (0.05) -
Cost as at 31 March 2017 (A) 56.07 896.55 506.66 71.90 17.78 1,548.96 3,295.50
Additions 0.39 28.05 - - - 28.44 -
Cost as at 31 March 2018 © 56.46 924.60 506.66 71.90 17.78 1,577.40 3,295.50
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2016 3754 . 10.00 71.90 - 127.15 851.64
Amortisation for the year 1.36 10.07 24.83 - 22 38.48 -
Disposals/adjustments (0.05) - - - (0.05) -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2017 (B) 38.85 17.78 34.83 71.90 222 165.58 851.64
Amortisation for the year 4.00 18.62 49.62 - 443 76.67 -
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2018 (D) 42.85 36.40 84.45 71.90 6.65 24225 851.64
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 (A)- (B) 17.22 878.77 471.83 - 15.56 1,383.38 2,443.86
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 (O- (D) 13.61 888.20 422,21 - 11.13 1,335.15 2,443.86

Note : Refer note 18 for other intangible assets provided as collateral against borrowings
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(Al amounts arc o Ko croree less officrorse stadod )

Impairment testing of goodwill with indefinite lives

Good will pertains to the two CGLs below w hich are also operating and reportable seyments, for impairment testing:
» Cement CGU
» Ready Mix CGU

Carrving amount of goodwill pertains to each of the CGUs

Cement RMX
31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 | 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Goodwill 2017.85 2017.85 426.01 426.01

The Company performed its annual impairment test for vears ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 respectively and no Goodwill impairment w as deemed nec essany,

i. Cement CGU
The recoverable amount of the Cement CGU is Rs. 12,744 Crores as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 - Rs.4,450 Crores) which has been determined based an a value in use

calculation using cash flow projections covering a five-vear period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the demand for Cement The pre-tar discount
rate applied to cash flow projections for impairment testing during the current vear is 13.56% and cash flows beyond the five-vear period are extrapolated using a 3,0%
growth rate that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the industry. It was concluded that the recoverable amount exceeded the carrving value of cash

generating unit hence there is no impairment.

ii. Ready Mix CGU

The recoverable amount of the Ready mix CGU is Rs. 900 Crores as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017 - Rs. 689 Crores) which has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgels covering a five-vear period. The projected cash flows have been updated to reflect the demand for Ready
mix. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections for impairment testing during the current year is 13.56% and cash flows bevond the five-vear period are
extrapolated using a 3.0% growth rate that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the industry. It was concluded that the recoverable amount ew.eeded the
carrying value of cash generating unit hence there is no impairment,

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations

The calculation of value in use for both units is most sensitive to the following assum ptions:

(1) Sales Growth rate
(2) Raw Material price inflation
(3) Market growth rate

Sales Growth Rate - Management expects a stable sales growth rate over the forecast period, the management further expects the Company position in relative to its
competitors to strengthen following sales aggressive targets taken by the Company.,

Raw Material Price inflation - Past material price movements are used as indicators of future price movements.

Market growth rate - Management expects the Company position in Cement & RMX business to be stable over the forecast period, the management further expects the
Company position in relative to its competitors to strengthen following sales aggressive targets taken by the Company.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
The implications of the key assumptions for the recoverable amount are discussed below:

Sales Growth Rate - Management recognises the effect of new entrant and additional capacity expansion of existing competitors as not to have material adverse impact on
the forecasts

Raw Material Price inflation - The m 8 has considered the possibility of greater than forecast increases in raw material price inflation. This may occur if
anticipated regulatory changes result in an increase in demand that cannot be met by suppliers. If prices of raw materials increase greater than the forecast price inflation,

then the RMX CGU will have to pass on such increase to the customer, for Cement CGU raw material prices do not vary significantly.

Market growth rate - Based on industrial data and infrastructure growth action taken by the government, the Company is of the view that the growth rate will be higher
than the forecast esti d by the Company.
While it is unlikely for all the above assumptions to move adversely together, it would require a significant increase/ decrease to result in an impairment charge.
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5. Non current investments
Unquoted, valued at cost unless stated otherwise
a. Investment in subsidiary company
50,000 (31 March 2017 - 50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/ each fully paid-up in Rima Fastorn Cement
Limited (formerly known as Lafarge Eastern India Limited) 0.05 0.05
b. Investment in joint venture
861,300 (31 March 2017 - 861,300) equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up in Wardha Vaalley Coal
Field Private Limited 0.86 086
Less: Provision for impairment (0.86) (0.86)
0.05 0.05

Note:

The Ministry of coal had allotted a coal block in the state of Maharashtra to a consortium in which the Company is a member. The Company plans to
carry out mining activities through Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited, a joint venture Company incorporated in India as a special purpose
vehicle. The Company’s ownership in the jointly controlled entity is 19.14%. The other owners in the joint venture being IST Stee! & Power Limited
(53.59%) and Ambuja Cements Limited (27.27%).

In prior years, the allotment of the coal block has been cancelled and the Joint Venture (JV) company has been show caused for allegedly not
achieving the progress milestones in the development of the mine. Deallocation of the coal block has been challenged before the Hon'ble Delhi High

Courtand the matter is sub-judice. The guarantees given by the JV has also been sought to be invoked but the same has been stayed by the Hon'ble

Delhi High Court subject to the guarantee being kept alive. Subsequently such gu furnished by the company has been cancelled.

. Investment in others

i. Equity investment (at FVTOCI)

1,925,924 (31 March 2017 - 1,925,924) Class A equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up in VS Lignite
Power Private Ltd. 1.93 1.93

fi. Debt investment (at FVTPL)
4,828,298 (31 March 2017 - 4,828,298) 0.01% cumulative class A redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10/-

each fully paid-up in VS Lignite Power Private Ltd. 4.83 4.83
Less: Provision for impairment (6.76) (6.76)
6. Loans

Doubtful

Loans to related party# m 1.07
Less: Provision for doubtful loans (1.11) (1.07)
Total - -

# Represents intercorporate loan given to Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited for working capital requirements.

7. Other non-current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Industrial promotional assistance 380.75 228.78
Deposits with govt. authorities and others 134,43 128.81
Sub total (a) 515.18 357.59
Doubtful

Deposits with govt. authorities and others 4.90 4.72
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (4.90) (4.72)
Sub total (b) - S
Total (a+b) 515.18 357.59

The Company is entitled to Industrial Promotional Assistance related to the Mejia Cement Plant of 75% of the VAT and CST paid by it, for a period of
12 years, from the Government of West Bengal under the West Bengal Incentive Scheme 2004. Accordingly, the Company has accrued such fiscal
incentive in its books (disclosed in note 27). However, due to the significant delays in processing of such incentive claims, the Company filed a writ
petition against the Government during the year in the Honourable High Court of Kolkata. Based on advice of external legal counsel, the Company is
—=
<| \stag

|confident that such accrued fiscal incentive is fully recoverable.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March, 2018
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Particulars As at \s at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
8. Other non current assets
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 106.55 16.22
Advances recor eralilc 021 0.33
Prepaid expenses 071 1.20
Balances with indirect tax authorities 0.81
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taration) 159.79 146.53
Sub total (a) 267 20 195.09
Doubtful
Capital advances 126 1.26
Less; Provision for doubt{ul advances (1.26) (1.26)
Sub total (b) - -
Total {a+b) 267.26 195.09
9. Inventories
(Valued at cost or NRV whichever is lower)
Raw materials 52.41 41.51
(includes in transit and stock with third party Rs. 11.43 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs.6.30 crores)
Work-in-progress* 137.85 128.88
(includes in transit Rs. 11.30 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs. 8.55 crores)
Finished goods* 54.94 50.46
(includes in transit and stock with third party Rs. 12.58 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs.0.96 crores)
Stores and Spare Parts, Packing Material and Fuel 185.00 140.19
(includes in transit and stock with third parties Rs. 18.18 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs.11.05 crores)
Total 430.20 361.04
* Inventory of work-in-progress and finished 800ds of previous year includes excise duty of Rs, 11.93
crores and Rs. 9.69 crores respectively.
10. Investments
Quoted, valued at fair value through statement of profit and loss
Reliance Liquid fund (31 March 2017 - 1,778.68 Units) - 0.70
SBI Premier Liquid fund (253,816,949 Units, 31 March 2017- 2,166.93 Units) 69.15 0.55
ICICI Pru Institutional Liquid Plan - SI Growth (31 March 2017 - 3,783,533 Units) - 90.86
HDFC Liquid Fund - Growth (31 March 2017 - 190,682 Units) 61.01
Tata Liquid Fund - Regular Plan - Growth (31 March 2017 - 230,760.726 Units) 68.99
Birla Cash Plus- IP - Growth (31 March 2017 - 1,542,456.424 Units) 40.18
SBI Premiur Liquid Fund - Super Institutional - Growth (31 March 2017 - 154,758.617 Units) 39.40
DSP Blackrock Liquidity Fund- (395,046.989 Units, 31 March 2017- 176,894.428 Units) 98.18 41.01
UTI Money Market - IP - Growth (31 March 2017 - 382,460.925 Units) - 69.49
ICICI Prudential Liquid Plan - Dir Growth (2,337,516.037 Units) 60.11 -
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - Dir - Growth (2925,157.116 Units) 79.03 -
HDFC FRIF - STF - WP - Dir - Growth (39,173,234.922 Units) 119.02 -
Tata Ultra Short Term Fund - Dir - Growth (74,406.289 Units) 19.77 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Dir - Growth (583,636.517 Units) 20.07 -
SBI Treasury Advantage Fund - Dir - Growth (324,827.803 Units) 64.26 -
UTI Floating Rate Fund - STP - Dir - Growth (262,96.723 Units) 7.65 -
Kotak Low Duration Fund - Dir - Growth (670,590.92 Units) 146.92 -
Reliance Medium Term Fund - Dir - Growth (32,212,679.967 Units) 119.84 -
Invesco India Medium Term Bond Fund-Dir-Gr (221,882.634 Units) 40.37 -
Total 844.37 412.19
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 844.37 412.19
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 844.37 412.19
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
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P.

articulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
11. Trade receivables

Secured, considered good 189.45 134.90
Unsecured, considered good 225.70 309.32
Doubtful 65.04 56,25

480.79 500.47

Provision tor doubttul trade receivables (63 64) (56.25)
Total 41515 EXTEY)
No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers ot the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Also no trade or
other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.05 0.05
Balances with bank

- On current accounts 17.90 47.13

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months* 10.00 21.61
Cheques/ drafts on hand 5.59 2.96
Total 3354 7175
13. Other bank balances

Earmarked (restricted) balances with banks for :

Collateral for disputed indirect tax cases 5.18 5.18
Total 5.18 5.18
14. Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans/advances to employees 0.80 1.99
Total 0.80 1.99
15. Other current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Industrial promotional assistance 27.74 120.36
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.58 0.83
Derivative assets - 0.00
Deposits with govt. authorities and others 107.76 99.48
Total 136.08 220.67
16. Other cumrent assets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Balances with indirect tax authorities 26.10 69.83
Advances recoverable 87.22 6278
Other receivables 3.54 5.66
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 7.99 7.50
Prepaid expenses 13.40 10.75
Total 138.25 156.52
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Particulars 1 March 2018 31 March 2477

17. Equity share capital

Authorized

7,801,110.000 (31 March 2017 - 7,801,110,000 shares) equity shares ol Rs. 10/ - pach 7.801 11 7.801.11

1.000.000,000 (3§ March 2017 - 1,000,000,000 shares) preference shares ot Rs. 10/ each 1,000.00 1,000.00

8,801.11 8,801.11

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

150,000,000 (31 March 2017 - 150,000,000 shares) equity shares of Rs 10/- each 150.00 150.00
150.00 150.00

(a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The shareholders are entitled to dividends in Indian Rupees, proposed In' the Board of Directors and su bject to the approval of the shareholders in the,
Annual General Meetings.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares heldt by the shareholders.

(b) Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company

Nirma Limited (Holding Company)

No of Shares 149,999,994 149,999,994
Shareholding % 100% 100%

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholder/ members and other declarations received from shareholder regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(c) Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the
period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Equity shares issued pursuant to merger scheme (Refer note 50) (No. of shares) - 150,000,000

Nature and purpose of reserve

A - Capital Reserve on Amalgamation
Capital reserve is used to record excess of net assets taken over pursuant to amalgamation. {Refer note 50)

B - Debenture Redemption Reserve
The Companies Act requires that where a company issues debentures, it shall creates a debentures redemption reserve out of profit of the Company

available for payment of dividend. The Company is required to maintain a Debenture Redemption Reserve of 25% of the value of debenture issued.

C- Cash flow hedge reserve

The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk associated with its highly probable forecast purchase. For,
hedging foreign currency risk, the Company uses foreign currency forward contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these
hedge are effective; the change in fair value of hedging instrument is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amount recognised in the cash
flow hedging reserve is reclassified to profit or loss when hedged item affects profit or loss.

D - Securities premium
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited {formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March, 2018
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Particulars A3 at As at
) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

18. Borrowings

i) Non convertible debentures (Refer note a)

8.66% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2021 (8000 nos.) 778.77 774,02

8.57% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2020 (8000 nos ) 78491 779.90

847% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2019 (12,500 nos.) 1.236.02 1,227.80

8.37% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2018 {11,500 nos.) - 1,138.04

i) Unsecured borrowings

Inter corporate deposit from holding company (Refer note b) 33.72 311.31

2% Unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares (Refer note ) 72.27 67.39
3,205.69 4,298.46

Note :

a. The Company has issued Non convertible debentures (NCD) of Rs. 4000.00 crores which are secured by first ranking exclusive charge in favour of
the debenture trustee over all rights, title, interest and benefit of the Company in respect of and over the fixed assets including plant and machinery,
equipments, land, immovable properties, mining leases (to the extent permitted under the applicable law), investments, its intellectual pProperties
(other than the excluded intellectual properties) and a second pari passu charge over the current assets including cash, receivables, stocks, bank

accounts of the Company. The interest is payable half yearly at the applicable rates as specified for each series

b. The inter corporate deposit of Rs. 299.78 crores is long term in nature and carries interest rate of 8%, compounded annualy.

c. Unlisted, unsecured compulsory convertible debentures carry interest (accruing quarterly) at the rate of 2% on the outstanding amount. Each
compulsory convertible debentures (CCD) are convertible at par and as such, 1 CCD of Rs 1,00,000/- will be converted into 10,000 equity share of INR

10 each. Refer summary of significant accounting policies for explanation on presentation of liability and equity component of CCD's.

Repayment Schedule of non convertible debentures:

Not later than one year 1,150.00 -
Later than one year and not later than two years 1,250.00 1,150.00
Later than two vears and not later than five years 1,600.00 2,850.00
19. Other non-current financial liabilities
Liability for employee related expenses . 0.75
Other liabilities 50.97 0.01
Total 50.97 0.76
20. Provisions (non-current)
Provision for death benefit (Refer note 39) 3.51 3.50
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 39) 1.27 -
Provision for site restoration (Refer note 51) 27.27 23.81
Provision for contractors' charges (Refer note 51) 23.72 21.34
Total 55.77 48.65




ﬁ\luvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at 31 March, 2018

CA amount are i Rs crores. wniess obherer <bated)
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31 March 2018 31 March 217
—

21. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liability (Refer note 38) 1,502.02 1,635.12

Depreciation and amortisation® 53254 625 3]

- Deferred tax liability on business combination (Reter note 50} 964.62 1.009 8)
- Others +4.86

Deferred tax asset (Refer note 38) 320.47 410.74
- Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act 56.82 57.39
- Provision for doubtful debts and advances 28.14 24.20
- Unabsorbed depreciation* - 123.35
- Others 30.84 10.05
- MAT credit entitlement 204.67 19555
Total 1,181.55 1,224.38

FY 2014-15. Accordingly, DTA on unabsorbed depreciation has heen reversed and DTA on increased tax

* In FY 2014-15, Lafarge Aggregates and Concrete India Private Limited (LAC) got amalgamated with the Company and the Company had created
Deferred Tax Asset (DTA) on unabsorbed depreciation of LAC. In FY 2017-18, NVCL has decided to withdraw its claim u/s 72A ot the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (IT Act) for unabsorbed depreciation and made a claim u/s 43 (6) of IT Act tor addition of such unabsorbed depreciation to its tax block for

block has been created during the year.

22, Borrowings

Current maturities of long term debt

23. Trade payables

Trade payables (Refer note 40)
Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 49)
Total

24. Other current financial liabilities

Creditors for capital expenditure

Security deposits from dealers, transporters and others
Derivative liabilities

Total

25. Provisions (current)

Provision for leave benefits (Refer note 39)

Provision for death benefit (Refer note 39)

Provision for indirect taxes/ litigations (Refer note 51)
Provision for dealers' discounts (Refer note 51)
Provision for contractors’ charges (Refer note 51)
Provision - Others

Total

26. Other current liabilities

Advance from customers

Liability for employee related expenses

Liability towards discount to dealers

Others (including statutory dues, provision for expenses)
Total

1,163.11 15.92
1,163.11 1592
660.48 734.69
5.95 5.30
666.43 739.99
40.53 30.66
384.22 368.86
- 0.08
424.75 399.60
15.68 12.89
0.46 0.41
185.06 193.05
91.21 64.80
212 1.90
1.94 345
296.47 276.50
51.86 69.56
56.55 64.24
219.49 115.18
129.47 83.23
457.37 332.21
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Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

27. Revenue from operations

Sale of products (including excise duty)*
Finished goods 6,056 93 5,686.05
Traded goods 7857 2575

Other operating revenue

Income from sen ices 3000 0.17

Recoveries of shortages & damaged cement 125 162

Industrial promotional assistance - fiscal incentive* 7537 86.15

Provision/liabilities no longer required, written back 7.74 27.21

Scrap sales 7.37 5.51
Total revenue from operations 6,297.23 5,832.46
Note :

* Sale of products for the current period are not comparable with previous periods, since sales for the period 1 July 2017 to 31 March 2018 age
net of GST whereas excise duty formed part of expenses in the periads before transition to GST.
** The Company has recognized as other operating revenue Industrial Promotional Assistance (IPA) of Rs. 9.58 Crores (Previous Year Rs,
54.94 Crores) related to Mejia Cement Plant, from the Government of West Bengal under the West Bengal Incentive Scheme 2004. Similarly,
IPA of Rs. 25.79 Crores (Previous Year Rs.31 21 Crores) has been recognised related to Chittorgarh Cement Plant, from the Government of|
Rajasthan under the Rajasthan Investment Promotion Scheme 2010.

28, Other income

Gain on sale of current investments 26.88 14.19
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 13.90 222
Interest income on bank deposits 116 3.10
Interest income on others 7.86 4.15
Other non-operating income 3.91 5.61
Total other income 53.71 29.27

29. Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 41.51 69.23
Add: Purchases 1,234.05 1,076.40
1,275.56 1,145.63

Less: Inventory at the end of the year (52.41) (41.51)
1,223.15 1,104.12

30. Purchase of stock in trade

Cement 61.54 8.62
Aggregates and Others 10.66 14.01
72.20 22.63

31. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 54.94 50.46
Work-in-progress 137.85 128.88
192.79 179.34

Inventories at the beginning of the year*
Finished goods 40.78 70.47
Work-in-progress 116.95 136.46
157.73 206.93
Changes in inventories of finished goods (14.16) 20.01
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress (20.90) 7.58

(35.06) 2759 ]

* Difference between closing stock of previous year and opening stock of current year represents excise
duty provision on closing stock amounting to Rs. 21,61 crores.
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Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
32. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, bonus and w ages 266.38 25032
Contribution to prov ident lund and other ittt bemelits 32.57 2384
Staif welfare expenses 18.55 16.81
317.50 289.97
33. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on tangible assets 314.88 273.96
Amortization of intangible assets 76.67 38.48
Depreciation on investment property 0.08 0.08
391 63 312.52
34. Finance costs
Intereston:
Non convertible debentures 367.13 178.54
Term loans 12.57
Inter corporate deposits 24.90 11.69
Compulsory convertible debentures 6.89 2.57
Security deposits from dealers, transporters and others 2239 2289
Cash credit accounts 0.17 -
Others 3.91 233
Other finance costs
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through protit and loss - 0.20
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs 0.38
425.41 231.17
35. Other expenses
Consumption of stores & spares (including write offs) 133.93 127 .36
Consumption of packing materials 183.23 154.94
Lease rent (Refer note 41) 38.53 43.56
Rates & taxes 24.57 48.22
Insurance 6.77 8.79
Repairs and maintenance to plant and machinery, building and others 77.00 86.75
CSR expenditure (Refer note 54) 5.93 5.82
Advertisement and sales promotions 85.27 41.50
Travelling and conveyance expenses 29.67 26.09
Legal and professional charges 27.29 20.19
Payment to auditors (Refer note below) 0.82 0.61
Donations 013 0.18
Provision for bad/doubtful debts and advances 10.97 5.50
Property, plant & equipment/ CWIP written off 0.82 7.27
Net (gain)/ loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (0.48) 0.33
Equipment hire, labour and subcontract charges 177.66 160.49
Security service charges 13.52 10.68
Miscellaneous expenses 28.17 28.20
843.80 776.48
Payment to auditor (excluding taxes)
Statutory Auditors :
Audit fee (including half year limited review) 0.62 0.46
Tax audit fee 0.10 0.05
Other services 0.03 0.05
Reimbursement of expenses 0.07 0.05
Total 0.82 0.61
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Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
36. Earnings per equity share

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 158.12 165.67
Weighted average number of equity shares EPS (Nos.) 150,000,000 306,984,081
Unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into cquity shares (Nos )” 1.000.000,000 490,410,959
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & dilutive EPS (Nos.) 1,150,000,000 797,395,040
Basic eamings per share (in Rs.) 1.37 2.08
Dilutive earning per share (in Rs.) 137 2.08
Face value per equity Share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
* The unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares are 1o be converted mandatorily, there is no cash settlement
option either with the Company or with the holder.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
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37. Tax expense
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

2017-18 2016-17
Current income tax 77.08 57.01
Tax expense relating to earlier years (44.38) (93.28)
32.70 (36.27)
Deferred tax liability (net)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 46.17 123.75
Minimum Alternate Tax credit (11.29) (57.01)
Deferred tax expense 31.88 66.74
Tax expense for the year 67.58 3047
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2017-18 2016-17
Tax Rate 34.608% 34.608%
Profit before tax 225.70 196.14
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (34.608%) 78.11 67.88
Tax effect of:
Expenses inadmissible under Income Tax Act, 1961 2.05 0.07
Divestment expenses - 6.16
Loss of amalgamating company disallowed - 60.05
Adjustment related to earlier years (Refer notes below) (25.87) (93.28)
Increase in business loss carried forward - (24.38)
Change in deferred tax rate 13.33 -
Others (0.04) 13.97
Tax expense as per statement of profit and loss 67.58 3047
Effective tax rate 29.94% 15.53%

Notes :

i) The Company has based on legal advice re-evaluated certain positions about the allowability of certain expenses and entitlement to
allowances and accordingly recomputed the brought forward losses and allowances resulting in an increased claim of Rs. 206.06 crores. The
claims relating to the current year also consider and are based on the positions adopted by the Company on the basis of such legal advice.

ii) In the financial year 2014-15, on amalgamation of Lafarge Aggregates and Concrete India Private Limited (LAC), the Company had created
deferred tax asset on the unabsorbed business losses of Rs. 93.62 crores. Based on tax advice sought, management has withdrawn its original

claim under section 72A with respect to unabsorbed depreciation and re-computed the actual cost of the assets of LAC that were taken over as

part of the merger in accordance with section 43(6) of the Act. However, out of abundant caution the deferred tax asset c;eaﬁi;f on, ﬁ?é&usmess
p Sid :

.S
192 17O\

losses created in earlier years has been reversed to the tune of Rs, 32.72 crores as disclosed above.
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Nuvoco Vista< Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
(A amounts are i Re eores. sl obler o, <hate

19. Employee benefit

The Company s ontributes (o the following post emplovment ditined beaetit plans in india

(i) Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes contributims Low ards provident fund superaniuation lund wnd othes retinient benefits to a delined | ontrbetion n
Company ts nquired to contnbute s spreafied pircentage of pavrall oot to the relirement benefit plan 1o fund the henefits

The Company recarnssed Re 1T rines (Provions vioar Rs 797 ¢ runse) for suprrannuatiin contribution in the statement of Profitand 1 s
for provident fund contrbutions o the stitvment of Profit and Line

The contributions payable 1o these plans by the Company are at rates speafied i the rules of the schemes.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plan:
A. The Company makes annual contabutions ta the Group Gratnty cum Lefe Assurance
payment as under

N On nuemal pinment / carly rotirement / withdrawal / resignation

As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Adt, 1972 with vestung period of 3 years of service
ii) On death in service

As per the provisions of the Payvment of Gratuity Act 1972 without any vesting penod.

The most revent actuantal valuation of plan assels and the present s elue of the defin
the related current service cost and past sen e cost, were measured using U Propcted Unit Credit Method,

Bused on the adtuanial valuation obtaned in ths resped, the fullowing 1oble sets out the status of the

Schemes admunistered by HDFC Life s tunded defined benefit plun for qualifving emplovers The

ed benefit abligation for gratuity were carned out as at Manch 11, 2018, The

gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statement ax ag balance

trement beaefit plan fur qualils ing cmploy e Under the plan, the

The

scheme privides for

sheet date.

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Manh
2018 2017 2018 2017
Gratuity Funded Death Benefit
Defined benefit obligation (60.28) (34.36) (97 91
Fair value of plan assets 59.01 35.28 -
Net defined benefit (abligation)/assets 127y 092 (397) (3.91)
Non-current (1.27) - (331) (33
Current 092 (0.46) [(LE3H]
B.Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability
The follow ing table shows a reconaliation from the apenuny balances to the dosing balances for net defined benefit liability / (asset) and 1ts components
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2018 2017 2018 2017
Gratuity Funded Death Benefit
Defined benefit obligation
Opening balance 34.36 50.03 R X3 154
Included in profit and loss
Current service cost 342 3.13 009 0.09
Past service cost 523 -
Interest cost 3.69 3.68 0.26 027
12.34 6.81 035 .36
Included in OCI
Actuanal loss (gain) - expenence adjustments (012) 120 0.16 017
Actuanial loss (gain} - financial assumptions {1.65) 201 (0.09) 012
(1.77) 321 0.07 0.29
Other
Benefits paid (4.65) (5.69) {0.36) (028}
Closing balance (a) 60.28 5436 397 391
Fair value of plan asset
Opening balance 5528 4813
Interest income 191 375
59.19 51.88 - -
Included in OCI
Actuarial gain /(loss) (0.18) 340 -
59.01 55.28 - -
Other
Contrib paid by the 1 465 5.69
Benefits paid (4.65) (5.69) -
Closing balance (b) 59.01 5528
Represented by
Net defined benefit asset (b-a) - 092 . -
Net defined benefit ability (a-b) 127 - 397 391
C. Plan assets —
Plan assets comprise the following . - q ‘\Stds )
31 March 31 March 7 o . Aarge, O\
2018 2017 7 \\,‘ar’_r\:x\/;o; g
Gratuity Funded o) N / \ e
Investment in scheme of insurance 100% 100% | > é’ Murig A 1‘] ‘; .
| el
2 ] L 70 /J s
TN S
A * 7
P

Company ropnised Re 817 croms s i e PS8 crore)

present valuc uf the detined benofit abligations and




1. Defined benefit obligations
i Actuarial assumptions

The folfiw ing wene the prim apal actuanal sssumptions at the reporting, date (oapressed as weightsd anerags)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Disvount sty Todu T
Fupeded rate of returm on plan assots LILLS Ranite
Salary escalation 8005 8.00%
Mortality preand post notirement Induin Assured Lives Murtality fndian Assured Lives Mortality
QUMe-08) (madifn d) Lt (2006 08) (modified) Ult
Emplovie tumover rate (for different ape proups) 3% % 5%-104%

The estimate of future salan mervases, considered 10 actuarial valustion takes tnto consideration inflation, semonty, promotion and other relovant factors such as supply and demind in the
employment markel

The evrerall evpested rale of retum on assets 1s deternuined based on the market prices prevating, on that date. appli able W the prrod over which the vhligation is to be settled
E. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possiblis changes at the reporting date 10 one of the reles ant actuaral assumptions, holding other assumptions constant. w ould have affected the defined benefit obligetion by the amounts shown
below

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
Increase Devrease Enuroase D rvras Increase Decrvase Increase Dewrease
Gratuity Death retirement Gratuity Death retirement
Discount rate (1% movement) (3.5} I (0.16) 017 (2.8%) Nk} {018) [LNT)
Future salary growth (1% movement) 29 (276) e ((106) 243 (234) nor (X1
Fmployes tumover rate {1% moviment) 00} 000 @07) 007 0.03 (U] (D.08) (0
- 0.18) (1AL {0.o0) 0.00 w2m 022

Mortality pre-retirement
Although the analysts does nut take account of the full distribution of ash fows expecied under the plan, it docs provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shum n

F. Other information 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Exputed employer contribution for the next annual reporting perisd 127
Weighled average duration of defined benefit obligation B yvary fyrars




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation } imited (formerly known as “Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to financial statements
(Al amoantsare i INR crores inloes otherose staled)

Note - 40
Related party refationships, transactions and balances

The table provides the information about the g group’s structure including the detatds of the subsidianies and the holding company. The foltow ing; table provides the
total amount of transactions that have been entered into wath related parties for the relevant hinancial vear

(i) Holding Company
Nirma Linuted

(ii) Intermediate Holding Company till 3rd October, 2016
Lafarge SAS

(iii) Subsidiary Company
Rima Eastern Cement Linuted (formerly known as Lafarge Eastern India Linuted)

(iv) Fellow Subsidiary Companies till 3rd October, 2016

Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd
Bazian Cement

Lafarge Emurates Cement

Lafarge Service Group Pans

Mbeya Cement Company Ltd.

Alsafwa Cement Company

Lafarge Perlmooser, Gmbh

Lafarge Energy Solutions SAS

ACC Limited

Ambuja Cement Limited

Holcim Technology(Singapore) PTE Ltd
Gaj Ambuja Cement (A unit of Ambuja Cement Limited)

(v} Joint Venture Company
Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limuted

(iv) Key Management Personnel
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer - Mr, Ujjwal Batria
Director - Mr. Sharad Jaynarayan Shrimali (Ceased to be director w e  4th September 2017)
Director - Mr. Suketu Nareshkumar Shah
Independent Director - Mr. Berjis Minoo Desa)
Independent Director - Mrs. Bhavna Doshi
Additional Director - Mr. Hiren Patel {w.e.f 11th November 2017)
Additional Director - Mr. Kaushik Patel (w.e.f 9th November 2017)
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to consolidated financial statements
(All amounts are i1 INR croves, unless otherorse stated)

Details of Related Party Transactions carried out during the year Rs in Crore
As at and for the year ended 31st March 2018 As at and for the year ended 31st March 2017
o Holding/ ‘o
Particulars Holding l"d.lotv Joint Venture intermediate ld.lutv Joint Venture
Subsidiary Total s Subsidiary Total
Company . Company Holding . Company
Companies Companies
Company
Managerial & Technical Service Charges
- Lafarge SA - - (3.57) (3.57)
Purchases
- Lafarge Energy Solutions SAS - - - 52,07 52.07
- Ambuja Cement Limited - - - - 18.72 18.72
-Gaj Ambuja Cement (A unit of Ambuja Cement Limited) - - - - - 033 - 0.33
- Nirma Limited 67.00 - - 67.00 17.94 - - 17.94
Finance Cost 3179 - - 31.79 14.26 14.26
Interest Income - 0.18 0.18
ssue of Equity Shares
- Nirma Limited - - - - 150.00 . 150.60
ssue of Inter Corporate Deposit
- Nirma Limited - - - - 299.78 - 299.78
ssue of compulsory convertible debentures
- Nirma Limited # - - - 1,000.00 1,000.00
teimb of Exp and other payments
Lafarge SA = - . - - 6.56 6.56
- Lafarge AsiaSdn Bhd - - - - - 6.76 - 6.76
Lafarge Perlmooser, Gmbh - - - - - 0.74 0.74
xpenses incurred on behalf of
Lafarge SA - 227 227
Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd - - - - - 0.01 : 0.01
Bazian Cement - - - - - 0.06 0.06
Lafarge Emirates Cement - - - - 0.16 - 0.16
Holcim Technology(Singapore) PTE Lid. . . - - 1.00 1.00
Lafarge Services Group - Paris - - - - 0.14 0.14
Mbeya Cement Company Ltd - - - - 0.10 0.10
Alsafwa Cement Company - - - - - 0.32 0.32
oans given - - 0.04 0.04 -
\terest Payable and outstanding
Nirma Limited 40.62 - - 40.62 13.11 1311
utstanding amount payable
Lafarge SA - - - 5.07 5.07
Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd - - - - - 3.80 3.80
Nirma Limited 12.20 - - 12.20 16.20 : - 16.20
3aj Ambuja Cement (A unit of Ambuja Cement Limited) - - - - 0.85 - 0.85
ACC Limited - - - - - 0.46 - 0.46
Ambuja Cement Limited - - - - - 15.99 15.99
utstanding amount recejvable
lans - 11 1m 1.07 1.07
ovision against the receivables - - 1.29 1.29 - - 1.07 1.07

All transactions listed above are at arms length price and all the outstanding balances are unsecured.

Cey Managerial Compensation breakup is as follow;

mpensation paid to key management person 2017-18 2016-17
hort term 624 11.04
ost retirement 0.34 135
al 6.58 12.39

fessional services availed from relative of Key Management

sonnel

0.18




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statement
(All amonnts are in Rs crores, unless otherwise stated)

41. Operating leases

Lease payments
(a) The Company has taken various residential and commercial premises under operating leases. Further,

certain arrangements entered by Company meet criteria specified in Appendix C of Ind AS 17 and are
classified as embedded operating leases. The lease payments recognised in the statement of profit and loss
is Rs. 38.53 Crores. (Previous year Rs. 43.56 Crores.)

(b) Future commitments of lease rentals on account of assets taken on non-cancellable operating lease are

as follows:
2017-18 2016-17
Less than one year 15.07 16.79
Between one and five years 5.61 10.36
More than five years 0.43 0.75
21.11 27.90
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
M aronids aec i Rs crores, wiless otherunse stated)

42. Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

\. Accounting classification and fair values
The follawing table shows the carrving amounts and fair s alues of financial
lor inancial assets and tinancial hatilities if the carrying

assets and tinancial habihtics, i luding their levels i the far value hierarchy it does not e lude farr A1
damount 15 A reasonable approumanon of fair valu

alue information

Camrying amount Fair value
31 March 2018
INR Rniarl TOC! Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Current investments BH 7 $44.37 844.37 84437
lrade recewvables - - 41515 41515 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3354 3354
Other bank halances - 518 518
Loans - 080 0.80 -
Others - - 651 20 651.26 - - "
844.37 - 1,105.93 1,950.30 844.37 - 842.37
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4.368.80 4,368.80 - 4,368.80 4.368.80
Trade pavables 666 43 666.43 -
Others 475.72 17572 - - .
- - 5,510.95 5,510.95 - 4,368.80 4,368.80
Camrying amount Fair value
31 March 2017
INR FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost Total Levell Level 2 lLevel 3 Total
Financial assets
Current investments 41219 - - 41219 41219 - 41219
Trade receivables - 4422 44.22 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 175 71.75
Other bank balances - - 518 518
Loans - - 199 1.99 - -
Others - - 578 26 578.26 - - .
Derivative asset 0.00 - - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00
412,19 - 1,101.40 1,513.59 412.19 0.00 412.19
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 4,314.38 4,314.38 4,314.38 43438
Trade payables - 73999 739.99 - = -
Others - 400.28 400.28 - =
Denvative Liabnlity 0.08 - - 0.08 - 0.08 0.08
0.08 - 5,454.65 5/454.73 - 431446 4,314.46




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
(All arnounts are m Rs crores, unless otherioise stated)

B. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
* Creditrisk;

* Liquidity risk ; and

* Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Company’s
risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with same. Risk assessment and management
policies and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management policies and
processes

ii. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company
grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is determined by the individual characteristics and specifications of each customer. The
profile of the customer, including the market risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Neither past due nor impaired 216.17 228.69
Past due but not impaired
Past due 1-180 days 145.16 156.50
Past due 181-365 days 29.03 26.50
Past due 1 to 2 years 16.87 18.28
More than 2 years 7.92 14.25

415.15 444.22

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine credit losses.
Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macro economic
indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical
trend of minimal credit losses to continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due are still
collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The allowance at 31 March,
2017 and 31 March, 2018 related to several customers that may default on their payments to the Company and may not pay their
outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follow :

2017-18 2016-17
Balance as at beginning of the year 56.25 55.37
Impairment loss recognised net of reversal 9.39 0.88
Balance at the end of the year 65.64 56.25

Cash and cash equivalents e
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions. The credit worthiness of stachy as 3\,

banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good /_-/'oo Aage 4, o\
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
(All amouenits are in Rs crores, wiiless otherwise stated)

iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company

manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, that it alwavs have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has obtained both fund based and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Company also
constantly monitors, as and when required, funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintain
financial liquidity. The company also enjoys Al+ ratings from CRISIL on short term facilities from banks indicating very strong
degree of safety regarding timely payment of financial obligations and caries lowest credit risk.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:
* All non derivative financial liabilities
* Derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturites are essential for understanding the timing of the cash flows.

Contractual cash flows

As at 31 March 2018 Total lyearorless 1-2years 2-5years More than
5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,723.90 1,442.26 1,441.21 1,840.43
Other non-current financial liabilities 50.97 - 50.97 - -
Trade payables 666.43 666.43 - - -
Other financial current liabilities 424.76 424.76 - - -
Contractual cash flows
As at 31 March 2017 Total lyearorless 1-2years 2-5years More than
5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 5,063.91 340.02 1,442.26 3,281.63 -
Other non-current financial liabilities 0.76 - 0.76 - -
Trade payables 739.99 739.99 - - -
Other financial current liabilities 399.52 399.52 - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 0.08 0.08
Jstas
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to Standalone financial statement

(Al amoust ks are in Rs croves, wnless otherivse stated)

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of tuture earnings, tair values or future cash flows tiat may result from adverse changes i anarket rates and prices (such as interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes m market rates and prices Market risk is attributabje to all market
risk-sensitiv'e finandial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and pavables and all short term and long-term debt. [he € ompany is exposed to market risk primarily related 1o
foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk

a. Currency risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates mav have potential impact on the profit and loss account and equity. where anv transaction references more than one currency or
where assets/ liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity.

Considering economitc environment in which the Company operates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuation in exchange rates in those countries. The risks

primarily relate to fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates of USD & EURO, on account of pavables to foreign suppliers, for import of petcoke, gypsum and spares.

The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge toreign exchange exposure. The Companv does not use derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Company is as jollows:

Amounts in Rs (Crores) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

EUR UsD EUR USD
Accounts Receivable - " . .
Accounts Payable 2,53 1.05 1.36 672
Net balance sheet exposure 2,53 1.05 136 6.72

Forward exchange contracts - - - -
Net exposure 2.53 1.05 1.36 6.72

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening / weakening of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of Company would result in increase or decrease in profit or loss and equity
as shown in table below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. The
following analvsis has been worked out based on the exposures as of the date of statements of tinancial position

Profit or loss

Effect in INR Crores Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2018

EUR (0.25) 0.25
usD (0.11) 0.11

Profit or loss

Effect in INR Crores Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2017

EUR (0.14) 0.14
usD (0.67) 0.67

b. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates to fixed deposits and borrowings from financial institutions. For details of the Company’s short-term and long term loans and
borrowings, including interest rate profiles, Refer to Note 18 and 22 of these financial statements.
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial stat
(A monnts are i Re grores unless otherinse -tateddy

43 Hedge accounting

The Company performs hedging on s fore asted/ firm loreign currency exposure tn respect of import of goods and servsces tfrom time to ime on a 12 months rolling
basis The Company uses forward ¢schange contracts to hedgy uts currency nisk ansing from such imports Hedging instruments are denomunated in the same currency oy
which the imports are made. Matunty ot hedging instruments are less than 12 months in previous vear

The foreagn exchange forw ard contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign currency transactions and changes 1n foreign ¢ hange forw ard rates

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Particulars

Fair value of foreign currency forward contracts designated as hedging instruments . _ 0.00 0.08

There are no forward contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2018, The cash flow hedges of the firm cornmitments dunng the vear ended 31 March 2017 were assessed to be
highly effective




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
(Al amounts are i Rs crores, unless ollerwise stated)

44, Netting off disclosure

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are otfset, or subject to enforceable master netting
arrangements and other similar agreements but not offset, as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off [presented in
Particulars Amounts in balance sheet financial statements
31 March 2018
Financial assets
Trade receivables 41563 (0.48) 415.15
Derivative asset - - -
Total 415.63 (0.48) 415.15
Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off |presented in
Particulars Amounts in balance sheet financial statements

31 March 2017
Financial assets
Trade receivables 44447 (0.25) 44422
Derivative asset 0.00 - 0.00
Total 44447 (0.25) 444.22
Financial liabilities
Derivative Liabilities 0.08 - 0.08
Total 0.08 - 0.08
Offsetting arrangements

(i) CFA agents

'he Company engages the services of CFA agents tor selling the cement. As per the terms of the agreement, Company has a
right to offset balances with CFA against debtors balances if debtor has not paid for a period of 90 days. Hence such
amounts have been offset in the balance sheet.

(ii

-~

Collateral against borrowings




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
(All amounts are in Rs crores, unless otherwise stated)

45. Capital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Company carefuly momnitors cash and bank balances, deployment of surplus funds and regularly assess
any clebt requirements.

The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2018 2017
Total borrowings along with accrued interest 4,368.80 4,314.38
Less : Cash and bank balances & Current Investments 883.08 (489.12)
Adjusted net debt 5,251.88 3,825.26
Equity 150.00 150.00
Other Equity 3,967.26 3,798.95
Total Equity 4,117.26 3,948.95

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 1.28 0.97
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement

(All amounts are in Rs crores, unless otheretse stated)

47. Contingent Liabilities

fii.

As at 31 March  As at 31 March

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of;

2018 2017

Claims against the Companv not acknowledged as delits. -
a. Disputed demands in respect of Sales Iax Iy various sales tax and VAT authorities 31.05 38.86
b. Disputed demand in respect of Entry Tax by various tax authorities 42.82 36 98
c. Disputed demand in respect of Excise Duty 173.72 167 4o
d. Disputed demand in respect of Service Tax 132 251
e. Stamp Duty paid under protest tor change of name from GKW to LRCL 1.80 1.80
f. Disputed demands in respect of Custom duties 14.44 144
g In respect of Income Tax 220.65 23447
h. Other claims 29 2057
Against these, payments under protest/ adjustments made In the Company 149.44 96 35
The State of Chhattisgarh has filed a Revision Application challenging the adjudication order of the
District Registrar and Collector of Stamps; Janjgir -Champa for alleged under-valuation of the
properties, which the Company acquired from Raymond Ltd. Against this, Ravmond Lid. has fileda ~ Amount not Amount not
Special Leave Petition before the Honorable Supreme Court, which has stayed the proceedings determinable  determinable
before the Board of Revenue.
The Collector of Stamps, Raipur has commenced enquiry proceedings under Section 37 (A)(3) of the
Indian Stamp Act, 1899 questioning the amount of stamp duty paid by The Tata Iron and Steel
Company Limited (TISCO) on transfer of the imm.ovable properties at Sonadih f_rom TISCOto the 40 nt not Amount not
Company. The Company has filed a Writ Petition in the Honorable High Court of Bilaspur, determinable  determinable
Chhattisgarh challenging the enquiry commenced by the Collector of Stamps. The matter is pending
before the High Court.
The Company’s liability, if at all arises, in both the above cases, is restricted to 50% by virtue of
busi fer ag; between Lafarge and Raymond Ltd/TISCO Amount not Amount not

determinable  determinable

iv. In June 2012, the Competition Commission of India (CCI) passed an Order levying a penalty of Rs. 490 crores on the Company in

connection with a complaint filed by the Builders Association of India against leading cement companies (including the Company) for
alleged violation of certain provisions of the Competition Act, 2002. The Company filed an appeal before the Competition Appellate
Tribunal (COMPAT) for setting aside the said Order of CCL The COMPAT granted stay on levying the penalty imposed on the
Company by CCI against deposit of 10% of the penalty amount. In December 2015, the COMPAT finally set aside the said Order of CCI
and remanded back to CCI for fresh adjudication of the issues and passing of fresh Order. It also allowed the Company to withdraw the
amount of 10% deposit kept with the CCI. However, in August 2016 the case was reheard by CCT and it passed an Order levying a
penalty of Rs. 490 crores on the Company. The Company had filed an appeal against the Order before the COMPAT. The COMPAT has
granted a stay on the CCl Order against a deposit of 10% of the penalty amount, which has been deposited since. The matter pending
with COMPAT has been transferred to the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) and the appeal of the Company is
pending before NCLAT. Based on advise of external legal counse! and the rights available with the Company, no provision is
considered necessary.

—_—
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Nuvaco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to Standalone financial statement
(All amounts arem Rs crores unle=~ otheriose stated)
48. Capital and other Commitment
As at 31 March  \s at 31 March
2018 07

Estimate amount ot contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net

off advances) 385,36 35.07

49. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

As at 31 March  As at 31 March

2018 2017
1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to anv supplier as at the
end of each accounting vear
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 3.95 5.30
Interest due on above 022 -
ir) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting vear
Principal 078 0.07
Interest 0.01 0.00
ii)) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making pavment (which been 0.22 0.07
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act, 2006,
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 0.23 0.25

V) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

Indjg (AO




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "L afarge India Limited

Notes to financial statements

(Al amounts are mn INR crores, unless othe rwise st}

50. Business combination

Nirchem Cement Limuted (Nircheny) was incorporated on 2nd \ugust 2010 as 4 wholly ownid
previous year, Nirma intended to acquire the coment and related business of | atarge
acquired such business of Lafarge (the "Acquisition®) by way of acquiring 100%
Nirthem was accounted for i the consolidated financial statements of Nirchem in accord
method The consolidated finanuial statements as at 4th Oktober. 2016 prepared by managem

subsidiary of Nirma Limited to engage in the cement business 11y 1,
India I imuted (Lafarge) and due to vanous approvals and commercial reasons, 1
ge from its shareholders In the previous ear. the acquisition of Lafarge ty
ance with Ind AS 103 Business Combinations by applving the acquisition
ent i acvordance with Ind AS 110, have been wopted In the Board Ungor

the avguistition method, all identifiably assets in luding intangibles. habilities and contingent habuliies of Lafarge were measured and accounted at the: tair value as ot (i
acquisition date. Fair values have been determined by anindependent valuer The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the acquired assets, babulitges

and contingent liabilities 15 recognized a= Goodwill

Calculation of Goodwill

Consideration Paid 8,207.50
Net Assets acquired 5,763.64
Goodwill 2443.86
Erstwhile acquired Goodwill in books of Lafarge 549.59
Additional Goodwill recognised 1,894.27

Subsequently, pursuant to the Scheme ot Amalgamation under Sections 230-232 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies |

(Comy , Ar

4th Qctober 2016, the Appointed Date

1

By virtue of guidance provided in App C of Ind AS 103, the above

15a°C control b combination” given the combining entities (Nirchem and

g and Amalg, Rules, 2016, sanctioned by the Company law tnibunal of Mumbai branch and filed with the Registrar of Companies
(RoC) on 19th Apnl, 2017, Nirchem Cement Limited has been amalgamated with Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited") w ¢ t

combunation has been

Lafarge) are both ultimately controlled by the same ultimate parent (Nirma Limited) before and after the Ig ion. Accord

4th October, 2016.

Calculation of Capital Reserve

gly, the b
accounted for using the pooling of interest method wherein the assets and habilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts as specified in the
scheme 1e. values as determuned under Ind AS 103 Business Combinations, which in turn have been pooled from the Consolidated Financial Statements of Nirchem as at

Particulars Amount Note
Investment in the books of Nirchem (8,207.50)

Equity share capital of Nirchem cancelled 3,000.00

Issue of new equity shares of Nuvoco as per merger scheme (150.00)

Nuvoco old share capital reversed 456.41

IND AS 103 carrying values derived from Nirchem CFS (incremental values):

Tangible assets 1,610.19 |Refer Note 2

Intangible assets 1,376.51 |Refer Note 4

Goodwill

1,894.27 |Refer Note 4

Deferred tax liability

(1,033.63)| Refer Note 38

Capital reserve on Merger (1,053.75)




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to Standalone financial statement

(AN arowits are in Re croves, wiless otheri i stated)

51 Disclosures required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 - Provisions

Site Restotation expense Dealer discount Indirect taxes and Provision for T
Particulars provisions litigations contractors' charges otal

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 T&;’—
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 2381 731 6180 17 60 193 N5 17792 RNt | 1892 304.90 2513
Additional provision made during the year 6.64 16.78 77.94 70.57 10.28 16.20 2.60 4.32 97.46 10787
Amounts used during the vear (1.24) (0.28) (30.91) (53.37) (113) (057) - (53.28) (54.."_".)-
Amounts written back during the year - - (0.62) - (17.14) (0.50) - . (17.76) (0.50)
Carrying amount at the end of the year # 29.21 23.81 91.21 64.80 185.06 193.05 25.84 23.24 331.32 304.90

# This includes current and non current portion

i. Site Restoration expense

The Company provides for the expenses to reclaim the quarries used for mining. The total estimate of recla
provision is made based on the minerals extracted during the vear. Mines reclamation expenses are incurre:

vary based on the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenditure,

ii. Dealer discount provisions

The provision for discounts is on account of various promotion and incentive schemes proposed to be announced to deale
historic data/ estimated figures of discounts passed on. The timing and amount of the cash flow:

approved by management, w hich is generally 12 to 18 months.

fii. Indirect taxes and legal cases

Provision for indirect tas and legal cases includes disputed cases of excise tax, Value added tax, sales tax,

iv. Provision for contractor charges

Provision for contractor's charges pertains to gratuity amount payable by contractor to its employ:

Note - 52

The Company had installed a Fiy Ash classifier at its Mejia Cement Plant in earlier years and has a claim of Rs.12,
(DVQ) towards their share of the capital expenditure on such Fly Ash classifier in terms of the agreement, which
with DVC. Pending resolution on the matters, the Company has not reco

operational settlements shall be amicably resolved with the party.

Note - 53

Exceptional items ot Rs. 17.81 crores, incurred in previous financial year,

Note - 54

As per the limit specified under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Com
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). However,
crores) has been incurred in relation to its ongoing projects which has been ca

of profit and loss as CSR expenditure.

Note - 55

The figures of the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year's classification.

the actual amount spent during the

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

SKA & Associates (Fo! ly know as MZSK & Associates)
Accountants
istration No. 105047W

entry tax and other disputed legal cases

ees which as per the terms of the contract shall be reimbursed by the Company.

is in relation to the orders of Competition Commission of India dated 2 February 2016 and 30 March 2015.

mation expenses is apportioned over the estimate of mineral reserves and a
d on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine. The actual expenses may

rs on products sold b the Company. The provision is based on the
s that will arise will be determined as and when these schemes are formalised and pay-offs

22 Crores (Prev tous vear Rs.12.22 Crores) on Damodar Valley Corporation
along with certain operational settlements are currently under discussion
gnized the above claims in its books. Further, the management is confident that the use of the Fly Ash classifier and

pany was required to spend Rs 5.54 crores (Previous year Rs 7.73 crores) during the year on account of
year amounts to Rs 5.93 crores (Previous year Rs 6.43 crores) out of which Rs Nil (Previous year Rs 0.61

pitalised and the balance of Rs 5.93 crores ( Previous year Rs 582 crores) has been accounted in the statement

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited

ol

DIN: 01737515

(2

Place : Mumbai
Date : 9 May 2018

=
Vishal Vilas Divadkar 151 o
Partner C} o)
Membership No. 118247 o

Manegdh Agrawal .
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : 9 May 2018

CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229

Suketu Nareshbhai Shah

Director

DIN: 07211283

Ajay ;
Compal ry
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying  consolidated Ind AS financial statements of
Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiary
(the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), and joint venture
comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind
AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the Group including its joint venture in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and of its joint
venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Head Office: The Ruby, Level 9, North West Wing, Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (W), Mumbai - 400 028, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 3332 1600
Bengalury | Chennai | Hyderabad | Kolkata I Mumbal | New Delhi - Gurugram | Pune wiww meka.in
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)
(continued)

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the




& Associates

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)

(continued)

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint
venture as at 31 March, 2018, and its consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

a. We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of one subsidiary (including the comparative
financial information for the year ended 31 March 2017), whose Ind AS financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. Nil and net assets of Rs. Nil as at 31 March 2018, total revenues of Rs. Nil and
net cash outflows/inflows amounting to Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also
include the Group’s share of net profit/loss of Rs. Nil for the year ended 31 March 2018, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in respect of one joint venture, whose
Ind AS financial statements (including the comparative financial information for the year ended 31
March 2017), have not been audited by us. These Ind AS financial statements of the joint venture
are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the joint venture and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of
the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid joint venture, is based solely on such unaudited Ind
AS financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to

us by the Management, these Ind AS financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor and the Ind AS financial statements

certified by the Management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)

(continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of

the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the

subsidiary and joint venture, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph above, we report, to the

extent applicable that:

(a)

(©)

(d)

(e)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
and joint venture as on 31 March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the joint venture and the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary
company, none of the directors of the Group companies, and its joint venture is disqualified as
on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a director of that Company in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly “Lafarge India Limited”)

(continued)

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group, and its joint venture and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

separate report in ‘Annexure A’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiary and joint venture, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group, and its joint venture - Refer Note 47 to
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Group, and its joint venture did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 315t March, 2018.

ii. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary and joint venture during the
year ended 315 March, 2018.

For MSKA & Associates (formerly MZSK & Associates)
/€m§t§red Account
Firm 1eglstratlon N 1b5047w
f | \L@v
W (W
i

i
% %
N\
lshal iv las D1vadkar
Partnef“
Membership No. 118247

Place : Mumbai
Date : 9" May 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVOCO VISTAS CORPORATION LIMITED (FORMERLY “LAFARGE INDIA

LIMITED”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (“the Company”) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary company and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India,
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company, and joint venture,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl) (“the Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVOCO VISTAS CORPORATION LIMITED (FORMERLY “LAFARGE INDIA
LIMITED”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (“the Company”) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary company and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India,
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary company, and joint venture,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl) (“the Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
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risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary company and joint venture, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note.
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Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 1 43(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company is
based on the corresponding report of its auditor. In case of one joint venture, the Ind AS financial
statements are unaudited and hence we are unable to comment on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in respect of this joint venture.

For MSKA & Associatés(formerly MZSK & Associates)
Chastered Accountants
Firm Registration 105047W
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i CURRENT ASSETS
’ {2} Inventories
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! {i) Investments
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(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other bank balances

{v} Loans

(vi) Other current financial assets
Other current assets
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

() Equity share capital
(b Other equity

¢+ Non-controlling interest

| LIABILITIES

[l NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(@) Financial liabilities

(i) Berrowings

(i) Other nor-current financial liabilities
(by
(©

Provisions (non-current)
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

CURRENT LIABILITIES

{a)  Financial liabilities

(i) Borrcwings

(i) Trade pay ables

(iii) Other current financial liabilitios
(b)  Provisions (current)

(c)  Other current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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4,117.22 3,948.95

]
18 3,205.69 4,298.46
i 50.97 5.76
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21 1,181.55 1,224.38
4,493.98 5,572.25
2 116311 15.92
23 666.43 739.99
24 424.75 399.60
25 296.47 276.50
2 457.37 33221
3,008.13 1,764.22
11,619.33 11,285.42
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
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INCOME
Revenue from aperations
Other ircome

Total Income

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock in trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Power and fuel
Freight and forwarding charges

Excise duty on saie of goods

Emplovee benefits expense
Pepreciation and amortization expense
Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional ifems and tax
Exceptional jtenis
Profit before tax
Tax expenses:

i Current tax (MAT)

2. MAT credit entitlement

3. Deferred tax {excluding MAT credit entitlement)
4. Tax expense relating to earlier vears
Total tax expense

Profit after tax

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (O
I Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profitand loss
t. Remeasurements gain/(losses) of post-employment benefit obligation

il. Income tax related to above

i
!i} Items that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
[ i Deferred gain/ (losses) on cash flow hedge

, ii. Income tax related to above

|
|

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per equity share
1. Basic (INR)
2. Diluted (INR)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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A Y

Charteted Accountants i
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Vishal Vilag Divadkar
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Date : 9 May 2018
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33 391,63
34 42541
35 843.85
6,125.29
22565
33 -
22565
37
77.08
(11.29)
46.17
{44.38) {93.28)
67.58 3047
158.07 165.67
1.51 0.19
(0.52) (0.0.)
0.99 0.12
0.09 0.09
(0.03) (0.03)
0.06 0.06
1.05 0.18
159.12 165.8%
158.07 165.67
159.12 165.85
36
137 208
1.37 2.08
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'Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited") T o
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2018
(AIL cnornts are 1n Rs crores nnless viferoise stuted;
[
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 225.65 196.14
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 391.63 312.52
Net (gain)/ loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (0.48) 0.32
Provision for bad/doubtful debts and advances 10.97 5.50
Provision for indirect taxes and litigation 10.28 16.20
Provision/liabilities no longer required, written back (#7.74) (27.21)
Property, Plant & Equipment/ CWIP written off 0.82 7.27
Gain on sale of current investments (26.88) (14.19)
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss (13.90) (2.22)
Bad debts - 0.00
Interest income on bank deposits (1.16) (3.10)
Interest income on others (7.86) (4.15)
Finance costs 42541 231.17
966.74 718.26
Operating profit before wurking capital adjustments:
Adjustments for working capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (69.16) 97.15
Decrease in trade and other receivables 19.68 73.64
Increase in loans and advances and other non current assets (54.64) (140.18)
Increase in trade / other pavables, provisions and other liability 179.20 233.07
1,041.82 981.94
Income tax paid (Net) (90.90) (59.72)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 950.91 922.22
(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACITIVITIES __ : P ,
Payment for purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment (217.13) (141.37)
Purchase of current investments (3.686.47) {2,366.26)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 3,295.067 1,970.48
Loans/advances given during the year 1.18 1.76
Interest received 5.43 6.44
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES {601.91) (528.95)
() CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES : -
Stamp duty on issue of shares (20.79) -
Repayment of borrowings - (300.00)
Interest paid (366.47) (203.49)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (387.26) (503.49)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (38.26) (110.22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 76.98 171.44
Additions through amalgamation - 15.76
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 12 and 13) 38.72 76.98
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet
Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet [Note 12 & 13]
Cash on hand 0.05 0.05
Cheques/ drafts on hand 5.59 2.96
Bank balances (including bank deposits) 33.08 73.96
Cash and Cash equivalents at the year end 38.72 7@5
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INuvaco Vistes Corporation Limited (formeriy known as Lafarge India Limited")

Cesnsolidated Siafement of Cash Flows fu; the year ended 31 Muarch 2018

(A GPHORTHES 41C (10 No CFerFes, (iess o FCise chidoug

ottt s ety s

Notes :
i) Cash ond Casl equivalents at the end of the vear mctudes cash collateral of Rs. 518 crores maintained by the Company for o liateral of disputed

indirect tax case.

ity The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standaid {Ind ASY) 7 ‘Cash Flow

Statements”

iif) Disclosure as required by (IND AS) 7 - "Cash Flow Statements" - Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities;

Particulars 201 7'13‘%-2—0’1—6—3—7—
Opening balance 431430 50250 |
Non Cash movement

- Borrowings of ainalgamalting company (Refer note 50) 4,292.53
- Accruai of interest 398,94 205,37
Cash movenent

- Principal repayment . (300.00)
- Interest payment (344.52) (186.01)
Closing balance 4,368.81 4,314.39

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financiai statements

As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nuvoco Vistas
Corporation Limited
CIN: U26940MH1999PLC118229

ormerly known as MZSK & Associates)

;or KA & Associates &

Chartex‘f%d Accountants
Firm Rcf%istration No,
] &
\ !

Suketu Nareshbhai Shah

i ;\2 f Director
ishal Vilas Divadkar DIN: 01737515 DIN: 07211283
Partner ~ .
Membership No 118247 w ¢
Manegth Agrawal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbsi Place : Mumbai
Date : 9 May 2018 Date : 9 May 2018
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Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

A.

a)

Company Information

Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Lafarge India Limited) (“the Company”)
is a limited company domiciled and headquartered in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office is located at Equinox Business Pa rk,
Tower-3, 4th Floor, LBS Marg, Off BKC, Kurla (West), Mumbai — 400070. The Company is
principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of Cement and Ready Mix along
with trading and manufacturing of Aggregates. The Company caters mainly to the domestic
market.

The consolidated financial statement of the Group for the year ended 31° March, 2018 was
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of Directors on 9th May, 2018.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary (together “the Group”) and
its jointly controlled entity have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The
consolidated financial statements up to year ended 31 March 2018 were prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended), notified
under section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

® certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)

» defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

b) Principles of Consolidation

i} The Consolidated Financial Statement comprises the financial statements of the
Company, its subsidiary and joint venture. Reference in these notes to the “group”
shall mean to include Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Lafarge
India Limited) (and/or its subsidiary/joint venture consolidated in these financial
statements unless otherwise stated.

i) The list of companies which are included in consolidation and the Parent company’s
holdings therein are as under:

[ Name of the Company Percentage
Holding
March 31, 2018

a) Subsidiaries
1) Rima Eastern Cement Limited (formerly known as 100%

Lafarge Eastern India Limited)
b) Joint Venture




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

T Wi e —— .
! 1) Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited 19.14% J
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Each of the above company is incorporated in India and financial statements are drawn upto the
same reporting date as that of the parent Company i.e. 31" March, 2018.

iii} The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary company
have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS 110 “Consolidated Financia|
Statements”. The intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised
profits/losses if any are fully eliminated.

iv) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are
presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Company’s separate
financial statements.

v} The excess cost of the Company of its investment in the subsidiary, on the acquisition
dates over and above the Company’s share of fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired and liability assumed in the subsidiary, is recognised in the Consolidated
Financial Statements as Goodwill. On the other hand, where the share of fair value of
net identifiable assets acquired and liability assumed as on the date of investment is in
excess of cost of investments of the Company, it is recognised as “Capital Reserve”.

The Company’s investments in the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in the joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The
carrying amount is adjusted to recognise changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the
joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually, If the
Company’s share of losses of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in joint venture, the
Company discontinues recognising further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent the Company has a legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of other
joint ventures. If the joint venture subsequently reports profit, the Company resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profit equals the share of losses
not recognised.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding
the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. It is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, related
discounts, incentives and volume rebates. Revenue for the period 1 April 2017 to 30 June 2017
includes excise duty and excludes value added tax/ sales tax. Revenue for the period 1 July 2017
to 31 March 2018 excludes goods and service tax.

Interest income
For all interest bearing financial assets interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash rec‘eiptks‘ over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross:.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as Lafarge India Limited)
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

d)

carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the
statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is accounted for when the right to receive the same is established, which g
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost, except the freehold land used for mining. All other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost of the items net of
depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Acquisition cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to getting the asset ready for intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Items of spare parts that meets the definition of ‘property, plant and equipment’ is recognised
as property, plant and equipment. The depreciation on such an item of spare part will begin
when the asset is available for use i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. In case of a Spare part, as it
may be readily available for use, it may be depreciated from the date of purchase of the spare
part.

Capital work in progress (‘CWIP) is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any.
All the direct expenditure related to implementation including incidental expenditure incurred
during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as CWIP
and after commissioning the same is transferred / allocated to the respective item of property,
plant and equipment.

Pre-operating costs, being indirect in nature, are expensed to the statement of profit and loss as
and when incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after jts use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, either on disposal or
when retired from active use. Losses arising in the case of retirement of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

The Group has a policy of capitalising overburden cost if the overburden removal exceeds
normal annual overburden removal by more than 50% and the total amount of stripping cost
related to excess removal is more than Rs. 0.50 Crores.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation (other than on mining land) is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost
of assets, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. Compon,e,nts;h\a,vfi/
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value significant to the total cost of the asset and life different from that of the main asset are
depreciated over its usefyl life. The useful lives have been determined based on technical
evaluation which are higher than those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act; 2013, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The useful lives so determined are as follows:

[A_sset Type Useful life (in years)

Buildings and roads 5to 50

Plant and machinery 1to 30

Railway sidings and locomotives 30

Office equipment 5to 10

Vehicles 5

Furniture and fixtures 5to 10

Leasehold land Over the lease period

Mining land Amortised on the unit of production
method based on extraction of limestone

from mines

Cost of mineral reserve embedded in the cost of freehold mining land is depreciated in
proportion of actual quantity of minerals extracted to the estimated quantity of extractable
mineral reserves.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year
is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal. Cost of lease-hold
land is amortized equally over the period of lease.

Residual values, useful life of assets and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

e} Investment property
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Group depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date
of original purchase.

The Group, based on management estimate, depreciates the building over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
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Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives based on
underlying contracts where applicable, except for mining rights

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. The useful lives so

determined are as follows:
Useful life (in years) ]

Amortised on the unit of production |

method based on extraction of
limestone from mines but restricted
upto the lease period (in case of
Leasehold and Freehold Land)

Asset Type

Mining Rights

Supplier agreement (Finite) Upto the validity of the
Contract

m . .
Trademark {Finite) 10

Software {Finite) 5
I N

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least atthe end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level, and whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
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g)

h)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount js determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
1. In case of individual asset, at higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use;
and
2. Incase of cash-generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent
cash flows), at the higher of the cash-generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and the
value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast ca Iculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. In any case the growth rate does not exceed the long term average growth
rate for the products/industries in wh ich the entity operates.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OC| up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable
amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goadwill relates. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Leases

The determination of whether as arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of the specific asset (or assets) and the
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arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is (or those assets
are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
the profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
are charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for
the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase.

Group as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective ieased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset till such time the asset is ready for
its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial
period of time (generally over twelve months) to get ready for its intended use or sa le.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that a company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two--broad

categories:
1. Financial assets at amortised cost
2. Financial assets at fair value
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Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized in the statement
of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit and loss) (FVTPL), or recognized in other
comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income) (FVTOCI)

Financial asset at amortised cost
Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if following two conditions are met:
1. Theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
2. The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value
Debt instruments
A debt instrument is classified as at FVTOC! if following two conditions are met:
1. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial assets, and
2. The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instrument included within the fair vaiue through other comprehensive income are
measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl).

All other investment in debt instruments not measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as
described above are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration, recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at fair value through profit or loss. For
all other equity instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election
on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit and loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.
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Equity instruments included within the fair value through profit or loss category are measu red at
fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simijar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's statement of
financial position) when:
1. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
2. The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to 3
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company aiso recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit ioss (ECL) model to the following:
1. Financial assets measured at amortised cost;
2. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH;

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

1. The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date); or

2. Full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the life of the financial instrument).

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables.

Under the simplified approach, the company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed. TS
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. if, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
1. Financial liabilities at fair value th rough profit or loss
2. Loansand borrowings
3. Financial guarantee contracts

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as weli as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified. debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument, Fin ncial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for tiaj
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costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

B. Off-setting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there js
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

C. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment

- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes
the Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged,
hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair valueor
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effectil ‘
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1)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCl in the
cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions and firm commitments. The ineffective portion relating to foreign
currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to
commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial
asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the
foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Investment in joint ventures

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures:
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures are separated into liability and equity components based
on the terms of the contract,

On issuance of the convertible debentures, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted from equity, net of
associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years, o

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity compokn‘e" ”
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convertible debentures shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are initially recognised.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. All the grants related to an expense
item are recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to cOmpensate, are expensed. When grants relates to an assets it js
recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on the rates and tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the entity operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognised in equity and not
in the statement of profit and loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their corresponding carrying
amounts for the financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets are the amounts of income taxes recoverable in future periods in respect of:
1. deductible tempora ry differences;
2. the carry forward of unused tax losses; and
3. the carry forward of unused tax credits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mMeasured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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o)

p)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sa me
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as
current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that
there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company
reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to
the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal income tax
during the specified period.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and Net Realisable Value {NRV).

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the actual level of production which
approximates normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Stores, spares and other supplies: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis. Iltems of stores and spares that does not meet the definition of ‘property, plant
and equipment’ is recognised as a part of inventories.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Net Realisable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised
during the period in which the employee renders related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to
be made to a separately administered fund. The Company also has additional death benefit
scheme for specific set of employees. This death benefit scheme is unfunded. \ TR
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The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projecteq
unit credit method. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
* The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
¢ The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or

asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an

expense in the statement of profit and loss:

¢ Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

* Netinterest expense or income

Other Long-term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss for the period in which the employee has rendered services. The expenses are recognised at
the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation technique.
Actuarial gains and loss in respect of other long term benefits are charged to the statement of
profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Operating Segment:
The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured
consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. The Operating segments have been
identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. s p ey
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The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have
been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the
segment. Inter Segment revenue is accounted on the basis of transactions which are primarily
determined based on market/fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which
relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocated to segments on a reasonable basis have
been included under "unallocated revenue / expenses / assets / liabilities".

Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments:

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;

A present obligation arising from the past events, when no relia ble estimate is possible;

A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources
is remote.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit
for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributabie tax thereto for the
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of
potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the peried
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstand
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. ‘ '
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v} Significant accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, reve Nues
and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates and assumptions are based
on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of fina ncial
statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following
notes together with the accounting policies:

Note 37 - Current tax expense

Note 39 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations

Note 51 - Provisions and contingencies

Note 4 — Impairment of assets (both financial and non-financial)
Note 20 —Site restoration provision

Note 42 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Note 2 — Useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Note 4 — Useful life of Other intangible assets

w) Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
1. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. Itisheld prima rily for the purpose of trading;
3. ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,
Or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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y)

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Group's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction.

At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
functional currency using the foreign excha nge rate at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on

of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or Joss is recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of
profit and loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income or the statement of profit
and loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair valye
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
1. In the principal market for the asset or liability,
Or
2. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market pa rticipants
in their economic best interest. [
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observabie
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
1. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
Liabilities.
2. level 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
3. Level 3 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Exceptional items

Certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company, such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the notes accompanying to the financial statements.

aa) Business combinations under common control

bb) Rounding off

Common control business combinations include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or
businesses, between entities within a group.

Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for
using the pooling of interests method. Under pooling of interest method, the assets and
liabilities of the combined entity are reflected at their carrying amounts, the only adjustment
that are made are to harmonize accounting policies.

The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if
the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business
combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from
that date.

The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the
transferor is transferred to capital reserve and presented separately from other capital reserves
with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes.
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All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule ll, unless otherwise stated. Any amount
appearing as Rs.0.00 represents amount less than Rs.50,000.

cc) Standards issued but not vet effective and have not been adopted early by the
Company

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018):

Ind AS 115 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with
customers.

The five steps in the model are as follows:
* Identify the contract with the customer;
* Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
* Determine the transaction price;
* Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts;
® Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Guidance is provided on topics such as the point in which revenue is recognised, accounting for
variable consideration, costs of fulfilling and obtaining a contract and various related matters,
New disclosures about revenue are also introduced.

The Group is yet to assess Ind AS 115’s full impact and intends to adopt ind AS 115 no earlier
than the accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018.

cc) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Group has not early
adopted any standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

Amendment to Ind AS 7: Statement of Cash Flows;

The Group has provided disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non cash changes. The Company has
provided the information for both the current and the comparative period in statement of cash
flow.
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3. Investment property

Description Amount
Cost as at 1 April 2016 1.59
Additions .
Disposals/ transfor
Cost as at 31 Mare N ] 1.59
Additions .
Disposals/transfer -
Cost as at 31 March 2018 (C) 159
Accumulated depreciation as at § April 2016 0.08
Depreciation for the vear 08
Disposals/ transfor -
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Masch 2017 (B 0.16
Depreciation for the viar 0.08
Disposals/ transfer .
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2018 (D) 0.24
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 (A} (B) 143
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 (C)- (D) I 1.35

The Group has recoived mdependent broker's quote for purchase of the investment property at Rs. 1.39 crores (provious vear Ry, 159 rorost which i the fair vatus of
investment property

4. Goodwill and Other intangible assets

Gther Intangible Assets
o Non .
Description i o Goodwill
r Software | MIMNE | vtake| Compete | SuPPlers Total
rights Agreement
Agreement

Cost a5 a1 T Apeil 2016 57 015 16.00 7150 - e | 1013
Additions 1455 1433 : . 2888
.“\d]lhlnl(Wﬂ due to Business Com hination (Refer note 5) . 86207 496 66 - 1778 1.376.51 1.894.27
Disposals/ adjustments ©03) i 7 . (©03)
Cost as at 31 March 2017 () 56.07 89655 50666 50 177 | iea96 | 329550
Additions 039 205 : : . 2.4 :
Cost a5 at 31 March 2018 (C) S646 52460 St6.66 7190 77| 15740
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2016 3754 77 1000 7190 . 12715 851.64
Amortisation for the yoas 136 1007 2481 : 22 3846
Disposals/ adjustments ©5) . . : ©.05) .
Accummulated amortisation as af 31 March 2077 (5] 3885 7778 383 7150 EED) 165.58 85164
Amortisation for the vear 100 18.62 1962 . 14 7667
Disposals/adjustmonts . . . X . ,
Accumulated amorlisation as af 31 March 2078 (D) 045 3640 3145 7190 565 24575 5161
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2017 (A} 5) 1723 578,77 783 T 1556 | 136338 | 244356
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 (C)- (O] 1361 385,20 22731 A 133 15345 | 244386

Note : Refer note 18 for other intangible assets provided as collateral against borrowings
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{mpairment testing of goodwill with indefir
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rment toshing

sepurtabie sepments, for

VRt bare abso aperatig

Goodwill pertaing o0 Hhe b CGLS
» Cement CGU

» Ready Mix U

Boof the TG

will portainy o

Carrying amouni of e

S e
F Cement RMX
| :Mard8  31-Mar17 | 31-Mardd | 31-Mardd

H 426.01 426.01
LA |

Goadwifl

The Graup performed 1ts anntal impatment tost for years ended 31 March 2018 wnd 11 Marc b 2017 respectively and no Goodwill impairment was deemed nec cssary

i. Cement CGU

The recoverable amount of the Cement CGU s Rs. 12,744 Crores as al 2t March 2118 {3 March 2017 - Re.4,430 Crores) which has been detormined hased on @ value i use

caleulation using cash flow projections covering 4 five-year period. The proge od cash flows have hoon updated o reflect the demand for Cement. The pre-tax drscount

rate apphied to cash flow projections for impairment testing darimng the current year is 13.36% and cash flows heyond the five-year period are extrapolated using o 3.0%
pe Proy i 4 & > 3 ) & ¥ i

growth rate that is the same as the long tem average growth tate for the industry 1t was conclusded Lhat the recoverable amount exceeded the carrving vatue of cash
generating unit hence there is no impairment

ii. Ready Mix CGU

The recoverable amount of the Ready mix € G s Rs. 900 Crores as al 31 March 2008 (3 March 2017 - Rs. 689 Croresy which has been determined based on a value i use

caleulation using cash flow projections from financial budgets covering « five. yoar perod. The projected cash flows have been updated to refloct the demand for Ready

mix. The pre-tax discount rate applied o cash flow projections for mpainmont tosting dusing the carrent gear is 13.56% and cash flows boyond the five-year period are

extrapolated using a 3.0% growth rate that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the industry. it was concluded that the recoverable amount excooded the

carrying value of cash generating unit henve there is no mpairment.

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations

The calcutation of vahue in use for both wunits is most sersitive Lo the following assumptions:
{1) Sales Growth rate

(2) Raw Materiat price inflation

(3) Market growth rate

Sales Growth Rate - Managenent espects a stable sales growth rale over the forecast period, the management further expects the Group position in relative to its

competitors to strengthen following safes aggressive Largels taken hy the Group.

Raw Material Price inflation - Past matorial price movements are used as indicators of fulure price movements.

Market growth rate - Management oxpecis the Group position in Cement & RMX business to bo stable over the forecast period, the management furthes expects the Group

position in relative 1o its competitors to strengthen following salos aggrossive tarpets faken by the Group.

ivity to changes in assumptions

Sens

The implications of the key assumptions for (he recoverable amount are discassed bolow

Sales Growth Rate - Management recognises the eifect of new entrant and additional capacity expansion of existing competitors as not 1o have material advorse impact on
the forecasts.

Raw Material Price inflation - The management has considored the possibility of greater than forecast increases in raw material price inflation. This may occur if
anticipated regulatory changes resalt in an increase in demand that cannot be met by suppliers. If prices of raw materials increase greater than the torecast price inflation,
then the RMX CGU will have to pass an such increase to the customer, for Coment CGU raw material prices do not vary significantly.

Market growth rate - Based on industrial data and infrastructure growth action taken by the government, the Group is of the view that the growth rate will be higher than

the forecast estimated by the Group.
While it is unlikely for all the above assumplions lo move adversely together, it would require a significant increase/ decrease to resull in an impairment charge
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. As at As at
N
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

5. Non current investments
Unquoted, valued at cost unless stated otherwise

a. Investment in joint venture

861,300 (31 March 2017 - 861,300) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fullv paid up in Wardha Vaailey Coal Field
Private Limited 0.86 (.86

Less: Provision for impairment (0.86) (0.86)

Note:
The Ministry of coal had allotted a coal block in the state of Maharashtra to a consortium in which the Company is a member. The Company plans to

carry out mining activities through Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited, a joint venture Company incorporated in India as a special purpose
vehicle. The Company’s ownership in the jointly controlled entity is 19.14%. The other owners in the joint venture being IST Steel & Power Limited
(53.59%) and Ambuja Cements Limited (27.27%).

In prior vears, the allotment of the coal block has been cancelled and the Joint Venture (JV) company has been show caused for allegedly not
achieving the progress milestones in the development of the mine. Deallocation of the coal block has been challenged before the Homble Delhi High
Court and the matter is sub-judice. The guarantees given by the JV has also been sought to be invoked but the same has been stayed by the Hon'ble Delhj

High Court subject to the guarantee being kept alive. Subsequently such guarantee furnished by the company has been cancelled.

c. Investment in others
i. Equity investment (at FVTOCI)

1,925,924 (31 March 2017 - 1,925,924) Class A equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid-up in VS Lignite Power|
Private Ltd 1.93 1.93

ii. Debt investment (at FVTPL)
4,828,298 (31 March 2017 - 4,828,298) 0.01% cumulative class A redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10/-

each tully paid-up in VS Lignite Power Private Ltd. 4.83 4.83
Less: Provision for impairment (6.76) (6.76)
6. Loans
Doubtful
Loans to related party# 111 1.07
Less: Provision for doubtful loans (1.11) (1.07)
Total - -

# Represents intercorporate loan given to Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited for working capital requirements.

7. Other non-current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Industrial promotional assistance 380.75 228.78
Deposits with govt. authorities and others 134.43 128.81
Sub total (a) 515.18 357.59
Doubtful

Deposits with Govt. authorities and others 4.90 4.72
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (4.90) (4.72)

Sub total (b)

Total (a+b) 515.18 357.59

The Group is entitled to Industrial Promotional Assistance related to the Mejia Cement Plant of 75% of the VAT and CST paid by it, fora period of 12
years, from the Government of West Bengal under the West Bengal Incentive Scheme 2004. Accordingly, the Group has accrued such fiscal incentive in its
books (disclosed in note 27). However, due to the significant delays in processing of such incentive claims, the Group filed a writ petition against the
Government during the year in the Honourable High Court of Kolkata. Based on advice of external legal counsel, the Group is confident that such
accrued fiscal incentive is fully recoverable. : o
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(AL antotints are o B crores, pless ofin roe stated)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

8. Other non current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances

Advances recoverable

Prepaid expenses

Balances with indirect tax authorities

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation)
Sub total (a)

Doubtful

Capital advances

Less: Provision for doubtful advances
Sub total (b)

Total (a+b)

9. Inventories
(Valued at cost or NRV whichever is lower)

Raw materials

(includes in transit and stock with third party Rs. 11.43 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs.6.30 crores)
Work-in-progress*

(includes in transit Rs. 11.30 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs. 8.55 crores)

Finished goods*

(includes in transit and stock with third party Rs. 12.58 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs.0.96 crores)
Stores and Spare Parts, Packing Material and Fuel

Total

and Rs. 9.69 crores respectively.

10. Investments

Quoted, valued at fair value through statement of profit and loss

Reliance Liquid fund (31 March 2017 - 1,778.68 Units)

SBI Premier Liquid fund (253,816.949 Units, 31 March 2017- 2,166.93 Units)
ICICI Pru Institutional Liquid Plan - S1 Growth (31 March 2017 - 3,783,533 Units)
HIDFC Liquid Fund - Growth (31 March 2017 - 190,682 Units)

Tata Liquid Fund - Regular Plan - Growth (31 March 2017 - 230,760.726 Units)
Birla Cash Plus- IP - Growth (31 March 2017 - 1,542 456.424 Units)

SBI Premiur Liquid Fund - Super Institutional - Growth (31 March 2017 - 154,758.617 Units)
DSP Blackrock Liquidity Fund- (395,046.989 Units, 31 March 2017- 176,894.428 Units)
UTI Money Market - IP - Growth (31 March 2017 - 382,460.925 Units)

ICICI Prudential Liquid Plan - Dir Growth (2,337,516.037 Units)

ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - Dir - Growth (2,925,157.116 Units)
HDFCFRIF -STE - WP - Dir - Growth (39,173,234.922 Units)

Tata Ultra Short Term Fund - Dir - Growth (74,406.289 Units)

Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Dir - Growth (583,636.517 Units)

SBI Treasury Advantage Fund - Dir - Growth (324,827.803 Units)

UTI Floating Rate Fund - STP - Dir - Growth (262,96.723 Units)

Kotak Low Duration Fund - Dir - Growth (670,590.92 Units)

Reliance Medium Term Fund - Dir - Growth (32,212,679.967 Units)

Invesco India Medium Term Bond Fund-Dir-Gr (221,882.634 Units)

Total

Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

(includes in transit and stock with third parties Rs. 18.18 crores (31 March 2017 : Rs.11.05 crores)

* Inwventorvy of work-in-progress and finished goods of previous year includes excise duty of Rs. 11.

93 crores

46.22
021 033
0.71 1.20
0.81
159.79 146.53
267 26 195,00
1.26 1.26
(1.26) (1.26)
267.26 195.09
52.41 41.51
137.85 128.88
54.94 50.46
185.00 140.19
430.20 361.04
- 0.70
69.15 0.55
90.86
61.01
68.99
- 40.18
- 39.40
98.18 41.01
- 69.49
60.11 -
79.03 -
119.02 -
19.77 -
20.07 -
64.26 -
7.65 -
146.92
119.84 -
40.37 -
844.37 412.19
844.37 412,19
844.37 412,19
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4 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
11. Trade receivables T
Secured, considered good 189.45 tEag
Unsecured, considered good 22570 304932
Doubtful 6564 5625

480,79 30047

Provision for doubtful trade receivables (65.64) (56.25)
Total 415.15 4422
No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person, Also no trade o other
receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which anv director is a partner, a director or a member.

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.05 .05
Balances with bank

- On current accounts 17.90 4718

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months* 10.00 21.61
Cheques/drafts on hand 559 2.96
Total 33.54 71.80
13. Other bank balances

Earmarked (restricted) balances with banks for :

Collateral for disputed indirect tax cases 5.18 5.18
Total 5.18 5.18
14. Loans
Unsecured, considered good
Loans/advances to employees 0.80 1.99
Total 0.80 1.99
15. Other current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Industrial promotional assistance 7.74 120.36
Interest accrued on fixed deposits .58 .83
Derivative assets - 0.00
Deposits with govt. authorities and others 107.76 99.48
Total 136.08 220.67
16. Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Balances with indirect tax authorities 26.10 69.83
Advances recoverable 87.22 62.78
Other receivables 3.54 5.66
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) 7.99 7.50
Prepaid expenses 13.40 10.75
Total 138.25 156.52
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Particulars As at As at
arieuia 21 March 2018 31 March 2017

17. Equity share capital

Authorized

7,801.110,000 {31 March 2017 - 7,801,1 10,000 shares) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 7801 11 780111

1,000,000,000 (31 March 2017 - 1,000,000,000 shares) preference shares of Rs 10/- each 1,000.00 1000.00

8,801.11 8,801.11

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

150,000,000 (31 March 2017 - 150,000,000 shares) equity shares of Rs, 10/~ each 150.00 150.00
150.00 150.00

(a) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Group has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Eacl holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
shareholders are entitled to dividends in Indian Rupees, proposed by the Board of Directors and subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual
General Meetings

Inr the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Group, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(b) Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company

Nirma Limited {Holding Company)
No of Shares 14,99,99,994 14,99,99,994
Shareholding % 100% 100%

As per records of the company, including its register of shareholder/ members and other declarations received from shareholder regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

(c) Aggregate number of equity shares issued as bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of
five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Equity shares issued pursuant to merger scheme (Refer note 50) (No. of shares) - 15,00,00,000

Nature and purpose of reserve
A - Capital Reserve on Amalgamation

Capital reserve is used to record excess of net assets taken over pursuant to amalgamation. (Reter note 50)

B - Debenture Redemption Reserve
The Companies Act requires that where a company issues debentures, it shall creates a debentures tedemption reserve out of profit of the Company

available for payment of dividend. The Company is required to maintain a Debenture Redemption Reserve of 25% of the value of debenture issued

C - Cash flow hedge reserve

The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of foreign currency risk associated with its highly probable forecast purchase. For
hedging foreign currency risk, the Company uses foreign currency forward contracts which are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these hedge
are effective; the change in fair value of hedging instrument is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amount recognised in the cash flow hedging
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss when hedged item affects profit or loss.

D - Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act
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18. Borrowings
i) Non convertible debentures (Refer note a}
8.66% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2021 (8000 nos.) T8I 773.02
8.57% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2020 (8000 nos.) 784.91 77900
8.47% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2019 (12,500 nos.) 1,236.02 1,227 80
8.37% Secured listed non convertible debenture redeemable at par on 14.09.2018 (11,500 Nn0s.) - 1138.04
ii) Unsecured borrowings
Inter corporate deposit from holding company (Refer note b) 33372 31131
2% Unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares (Refer note ¢) 72.27 67.39

3,205.69 1,298 46

Note:

a. The Group has issued Non convertible debentures (NCD) of Rs. 4000.00 crores which are secured by first ranking exclusive charge in favour of the
debenture trustee over all rights, title, interest and benetit of the Group in respect of and over the fixed assets including plant and machinery, equipments,
land, immovable properties, mining leases (to the extent permitted under the applicable law), investments, its intellectial properties (other than the
excluded intellectual properties) and a second pari passu charge over the current assets including casly, receivables, stocks, bank accounts of the Group.

The interest is payable half vearly at the applicable rates as specified for each series.

b. The inter corporate deposit of Rs. 299.78 crores is long term in nature and carries interest rate of 8%, compounded annualy.

¢. Unlisted, unsecured compulsory convertible debentures carry interest (accruing quarterly) at the rate of 2% on the outstanding amount. Fach
compulsory convertible debentures (CCD) are convertible at par and as such, T CCD of INR 1,00,000/ - will be converted into 10,000 equity share of INR

10 each. Refer summary of significant accounting policies for explanation on presentation of liability and equity component of CCD's

Repayment Schedule of non convertible debentures:

Not later than one vear 1,150.00 .
Later than one vear and not later than two vears 1,250.00 1,150.00
Later than two vears and not later than five vears 1,600.00 2,850.00
19. Other non-current financial liabilities
Liability for emplovee related expenses - 0.75
Other Habilities 50.97 0.01
Total 50.97 0.76
20. Provisions (non-current)
Provision for death benefit (Refer note 39) 351 3.50
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 39) 1.27 .
Provision for site restoration (Refer note 51) 2727 23.81
Provision for contractors' charges (Refer note 51)
Total
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21. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liability (Refer note 38) 1,502.02 1,635.12
- Depreciation and amortisation® 53254 625 37
- Deterred tax Hability on business combination (Refer note 50) 964.62 L0y 81
- Others 4.86 -
Deferred tax asset (Refer note 38) 320.47 410.74
- Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act 56.82 3759
- Provision for doubtful debts and advances 28.14 2420
- Unabsorbed depreciation® - 12335
- Others 30.84 10.05
- MAT credit entitlement 204.67 195 55

Total 1,181.55 1,224 38

Asset (DTA) on unabsorbed depreciation of LAC. In FY 2017-18, NVCL h

*In FY 2014-15, Lafarge Aggregates and Concrete India Private Limited (L AC

for unabsorbed depreciation and made a claim u/s 43 (6) of IT Act for addition of such unabsorbed

) got amalgamated with the Group and the Group had created Deferred Tax

as decided to withdraw its claim u/s 72A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (IT" Act)

Accordingly, DTA on unabsorbed depreciation has been reversed and DT A on increased tax block has been created during the year.

depreciation to its tax block for FY 2014-15

22. Borrowings
Current maturities of long term debt 1,163.11 15.92
1,163.11 1592
23. Trade payables
Trade payables (Refer note 40) 660.48 734.69
Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer note 49) 595 5.30
Total 666.43 739.99
24. Other current financial liabilities
Creditors for capital expenditure 40.53 30.66
Security deposits from dealers, transporters and others 384.22 368.86
Derivative liabilities - 0.08
Total 424.75 399.60
25. Provisions (current)
Provision for leave benefits (Refer note 39) 15.68 12.89
Provision for death benefit (Refer note 39) 0.46 0.41
Provision for indirect taxes/ litigations (Refer note 51) 185.06 193.05
Provision for dealers’ discounts (Refer note 51) 9121 64.80
Provision for contractors' charges (Refer note 51) 212 1.90
Provision - Others 1.94 3.45
Total 296.47 276.50
26. Other current Habilities
Advance from customers 51.86 69.56
Liability for employee related expenses 56.55 64.24
Liability towards discount to dealers 219.49 11518
Others (including statutory dues, provision for expenses) 12947 83.23
Total 457371 . 33221
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(AL amonnis are i1 Rs crores unloss stherivise stated)

* Sale of products for the current period are not comparable with previous periods, since sales for the period 1 July 2017 to 31 Mar
of GST whereas excise duty formed part of expenses in the periods before transition to GST.
** The Group has recognized as other Operating revenue Industrial Promotional Assistance (IFA} of Rs. 49.58 Crores (Previous

25.79 Crores (Previous Year Rs.31.21 Crores) has been recognised related to Chittorgarh Cement Plant, from the Government of R,
the Rajasthan Investment Promotion Scheme 2010.

Crores) related to Mejia Cement Plant, from the Government of West Bengal under ihe West Bengal Incentive Scheme 2004 Similarly, IPA of Rs.

e
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
27. Revenue from operations
Sale of products (including excise duty)*
Finished goods 6,056.93 3,686.05
Iraded goods 7857 2575
Other operating revenue
Income from services 30.00 0.17
Recoveries of shortages & damaged cement 1.25 162
Industrial promotional assistance - fiscal incentive** 75.37 86.15
Provision/liabilities no longer required, written back 4774 27.23
Scrap sales 737 551
Total revenue from operations 6,297.23 5832.46
Note :

ch 2018 are net,

Year Rs. 54.94

ajasthan under

28. Other income

Gair: on sale of current investments 20.88 1419
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss 13.90 2.22
Interest income on bank deposits 116 310
Interest income on others 786 415
Other non-operating income 391 5.61
Total other income 53.71 29.27
29. Cost of materials consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the vear 41.51 69.23
Add: Purchases 1,234.05 1,076.40
1,275.56 1,145.63
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear (52.41) (41.51)
1,223.15 1,104.12
30. Purchase of stock in trade
Cement 61.54 8.62
Aggregates and Others 10.66 14.01
72.20 22,63
31. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 54.94 50.46
Work-in-progress 13785 128.88
192.79 179.34
Inventories at the beginning of the year*
Finished goods 40.78 70.47
Work-in-progress 116.95 136.46
157.73 206.93
Changes in inventories of finished goods (14.16) 20.01
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress {20.90) 7.58
(35.06) 275

* Difference between closing stock of previous year and opening stock of current year represents excise duty
provision on closing stock amounting to Rs. 21.61 crores.
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Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
32. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, bonus and wages 266.38 25030
Contribution to provident fund and other retirement benefits 3257 22.84
Staff welfare expenses 18.55 16.81
317.50 289 .97
33. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on tangible assets 314.88 273.96
Amortization of intangible assets 76.67 38.48
Depreciation on investment property 0.08 0.08
391.63 312.52
34. Finance costs
Interest on :
Non convertible debentures 367.15 178.54
Term loans - 12.57
Inter corporate deposits 2490 11.69
Compulsory convertible debentures 6.89 2.57
Security deposits from dealers, transporters and others 22.39 22.89
Cash credit accounts 017 -
Others 3.91 2.33
Other finance costs
Fair value loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss B 0.20
Amortization of ancillary borrowing costs - 0.38
425.41 231.17
35. Other expenses
Consumption of stores & spares (including write offs) 133.93 127.36
Consumption of packing materials 183.23 154.94
Lease rent (Refer note 41) 38.53 43.56
Rates & taxes 2457 48.22
Insurance 6.77 8.79
Repairs and maintenance to plant and machinery, building and others 77.00 86.75
CSR expenditure (Refer note 54) 5.93 5.82
Advertisement and sales promotions 85.27 41.50
Travelling and conveyance expenses 29.67 26.09
Legal and professional charges 27.29 20.19
Payment to auditors (Refer note below) 0.82 0.61
Donations 013 0.18
Provision for bad/doubtful debts and advances 10.97 5.50
Property, plant & equipment/ CWIP written off 0.82 727
Net (gain)/ loss on foreign currency transaction and translation (0.48) 0.33
Equipment hire, labour and subcontract charges 177.66 160.49
Security service charges 13.52 10.68
Miscellaneous expenses 28.22 28.20
843.85 776.48
Payment to auditor (excluding taxes)
Statutory Auditors :
Audit fee (including half vear limited review) 0.62 046
Tax audit fee 0.10 0.05
Other services 0.03 0.05
Reimbursement of expenses 0.07 0.05
Total 0.82 0.61
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(Al amorints are 1 Rs crores, wnloss otherwice stated)

R
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
36. Earnings per equity share
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 158.07 165.67
Weighted average number of equity shares EPS (Nos.) 15,00,00,000 30,69,84,081
Unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares (Nos.) * 1,00,00,00,000 49,04,10,959
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic & dilutive EPS (Nos.) 1,15,00,00,000 79,73,95,040
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 137 2.08
Ditutive earning per share (in Rs.) 1.37 2.08
Face value per equity Share {in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
* The unlisted, unsecured debentures compulsorily convertible into equity shares are to be converted mandatorily; there is no cash settlement
option either with the Group or with the holder.




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Latarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statement
(All camounts are in Rs crores, unless otherwise stated)

37. Tax expense
(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

2017-18 2016-17
Current income tax 77.08 57 01
Tax expense relating to earlier years (44.38) {93.28)
32.70 (36.27)
Deferred tax liability (net)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 46.17 123.75
Minimum Alternate Tax credit (11.29) (57.01)
Deferred fax expense 34.88 66.74
Tax expense for the year 67.58 30.47
(b} Reconciliation of effective tax rate
2017-18 2016-17
Tax Rate 34.608% 34.608%
Profit before tax 225.70 196,14
Tax using the Group’s domestic tax rate (34.608%) 78.11 67.88
Tax effect of:
Expenses inadmissible under Income Tax Act, 1961 2.05 0.07
Divestment expenses - 6.16
Loss of amalgamating Group disallowed - 60.05
Adjustment related to earlier years (Refer notes below) (25.87) (93.28)
Increase in business loss carried forward - (24.38)
Change in deferred tax rate 1333 -
Others (0.04) 13.97
Tax expense as per statement of profit and loss 67.58 30.47
Effective tax rate 29.94% 15.53%
Notes :

1) The Group has based on legal advice re-evaluated certain positions about the allowability of certain expenses and entitlement to allowances
and accordingly recomputed the brought forward losses and aliowances resulting in an increased claim of Rs. 206.06 crores The claims

relating to the current year also consider and are based on the positions adopted by the Group on the basis of such legal advice.

ii) In the financial year 2014-15, on amalgamation of Lafarge Aggregates and Concrete India Private Limited (LAC), the Group had created
deferred tax asset on the unabsorbed business losses of Rs. 93.62 crores. Based on tax advice sought, management has withdrawn its original
" claim under section 72A with respect to unabsorbed depreciation and re-computed the actual cost of the assets of LAC that were taken over as
part of the merger in accordance with section 43(6) of the Act However, out of abundant caution the deferred tax asset created on the business

losses created in earlier years has been reversed to the tune of Rs. 32.72 crores as disclosed above.
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39 Employee benefit

The Group contributes to the follow mng postemplovment det it plans in India

{1} Defired Contribution Plans
The Group makes contributions towards provident tund, superansaation fund and other retirement benefits 1o

Urﬁup is reguired (o0 contribute a specified percentage of pavroll cost o

The Group recogmised Rs. 11,01 crores {Previous vear Ry, 7 42 5
ttand foss

for provident fund contributions in the statement of Pro

The contributions pavable t these plans by the Group are atrates specified in the rules of the schemes.
[& f

{ii) Defined Benefit Plan:
A The Group makes annual contributions 1o the Group Gratuty cum Lite Assurance Schemes adnministered by

pavment as under

1} On normal retirement / early retirement / withdrawal /
As per the provisions of the !’dymcnt of Gratuity Act, 1972 with
if) On death inservice:

As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratusty Act, 1972 wathout any vesting period

resignation
vesting period of 5 vears of service,

The most recent actuarial valuation of planassets and the present value of the

& defined sontribution retirement benetsr plan for gualit

83 tor superannuation contribution in the statement of Profit and Loss 1}

defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31 2018

v the plan, the

the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits

e Group recognised Re. 817 crores (previaus veras Re.8.31 croves)

HDFC Lite, a funded defmed benefit plan for quatifving empiovees fhe scheine provides for

and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect. the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
Gratuity Funded
Defined benefit obligation (60.28) (54.36)
Fair value of plan assets 59.01 55.28
Net defined benefit (obligation)/assets 1.27) 0.92
Non-current (1.27) -
Current - 0.92

B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
Gratuity Funded

Defined benefit obligation

Opening balance 54.36 50.03
Inciuded in profit and loss
Current service cost 342 313
Past service cost 523 -
Interest cost 3.69 3.68
12.34 6.81
Included in OC}
Actuarial loss (gain) - experience adjustments (0.12) 120
Actuarial loss {gain) - financial assumptions (1.65) 2.01
1.77) 3.21
Other
Benefits paid (4.63) (5.69)
Closing balance (a) 60.28 5436
Fair value of pian asset
Opening balance 55.28 48.13
Interest income 3.91 3.75
59.19 51.88
Included in OCI
Actuarial gain /(loss) (0.18) 3.40
59.01 55.28
Orher
Contributions paid by the employer 4.65 5.69
Benefits paid (4.65) {5.69)
Closing balance (b} 59.01 55.28
Represented by
Net defined benefit asset (b-a) - 0.92
Net defined benefit liability (a-b) 127 -
C. Plan assets
Plan assets comprise the following :
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
Gratuity Funded
Investment in scheime of insurance 100% 100%

amounts recognised 1n the Group’s financial statement as ax balance sheet date;

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
Death Benefit
{3.97) (391
(3.97) (3.9h
(3.51) (3.50)
(0.48) (0.41)

shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit fiability/ (asset) and its components

31 March
2018
Death Benetit

31 March
2017

391 254
0.09 0.09
0.26 0.27
0.35 0.36
0.16 017

{0.09) 0.12
0.07 0.29

(0.36) (0.28)
3.97 3.91
3.97

The present value of the defied benefit obligations
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Y. Defined benefit obligations

i Actuarial assumptions

stotiowang were the principal actuarial assumptions af 57 date (expressed as w sghted averages:
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Mscount rate BRIk 710%

h Apectesd rate ol relinoon plan assets Qe 800%

Salary escalation 800% 8.00%

Mortality preand post retirement Indian Assured Lives Mortality indian Assured Lives Mortality

(2000-08) tmodified) Ult {20006-08) (modified) Lili

Emplovee turnover rate (for different age groups: W 10% 5%-10%

<onsideration mflanon, senionty, premotion and other relevant factors such as supphy and demarnd in the

The estimeate of future salary increases, considered in actuar tal valuation takes intc
employment market

he overall expected rate of return on assets is determined pased on the market prices pres ailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be setticd
E. Sensitivity analysis

Reasapabiy possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuaria! assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obbigation by the amounis “hown

below
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Gratuity Death retirement Gratuity Death retirement
Discount rate (1% movement) {3.05) 338 {0.16) 0.17 (2.83) 313 018y 019
Future salary growth {1% movement) 291 {276 0.06 {0.06) 243 {2.34) 0.08 (0.7}
Employee turnover rate (1% movement) {0.00) 0.00 (0.07} 0.07 0.03 (0.03) 0.08) 0.0¢
- - {0.18) 0.19 (0.00) 0.00 ©.20 0.22

Mortalty pre-retirement

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, 1t does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptic

F. Other information 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Expected emplover contribution for the next annual reporting period 127
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation O vears 6 vears
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Note - 40
Related party relationships, trassactions and balances

winding the details of the subsidiaries and the haiding Group. The tollow ing table provides the

The table provides the information about the group’s stru f
threlated parties for the relevant financial vear:

total amount of transactions that have been entered into wi
Related parties and nature of relationship

(i) Holding Company
Nirma Limited

(i) Intermediate Holding Company till 3rd October, 2016
Lafarge SAS

(ifi) Fellow Subsidiary Companies till 3rd October, 2016

Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd
Bazian Cement

Lafarge Emirates Cement

Lafarge Service Group Paris

Mbeya Cement Company Ltd

Alsafwa Cement Company

Lafarge Perlmooser, Gmbh

Lafarge Energy Solutions SAS

ACC Limited

Ambuja Cement Limited

Holcim Technology(Singapore) PTE Lid.
Gaj Ambuja Cement (A unit of Ambuja Cement Limited)

{iv) Joint Venture Company
Wardha Vaalley Coal Field Private Limited

(v} Key Management Personnel
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer - Mr. Ujjwal Batria

Director - Mr. Sharad Jaynaravan Skrimali (Ceased to be director w.e.f 4th September 201 7
Director - Mr Suketu Nareshkumar Shah

Independent Director - Mr. Berjis Minoo Desai

Independent Director - Mrs. Bhavna Dashi

Additional Director - Afr. Hiren Patel {w.e.f{ 1'1th November 2017)

Additional Director - Mr Kaushik Patel (w.e.f 9th November 2017)
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(All amounts are 111 INR crores, unless otherwoise stated
Details of Related Party Transactions carried out during the year Rs in Crore
As at and for the year ended 31st March 2018 As at and for the year ended 31st March 2017
i Holding/ . )
Particulars Holding | _ Hl.lufw Joint Venture - Intermediate | . “1.10?‘ Joint Venture
Subsidiary Total B Subsidiary 8 Total
Company | .| Company Holding N .| Company
Companies . Companies
Company

Managerial & Technical Service Charges

- Lafarge GA - - - - (3.57) - - {3.57)
Purchases

- Lafarge Energy Solutions SAS - - - - - 52.07 52.07
- Ambuja Cement Limited - - - - - 18.72 - 18.72
-Gaj Ambuja Cement (A unit of Ambuja Cement Limited) - - - - - 0.33 - 0.33
- Nirma Limited 67.00 - - 67.00 17.94 - 17.94
Finance Cost 31.79 - - 3179 14.26 - - 14.26
Interest Income - - 0.18 0.18 - - - -
Issue of Equity Shares

- Nirma Limited - - - - 150.00 - 150.00
Issue of Inter Corporate Deposit

- Nirma Limited - - - - 299.78 B - 299.78
Issue of compulsory convertible debentures

~ Nirma Limited - - - - 1,000.00 - 1,000.00
Reimbursement of Expenses and other payments

~ Lafarge SA - - - - - ©.56 - 6.56
- Latarge Asia Sdn Bhd - - - - - 6.76 - 6.76
- Lafarge Perlmooser, Gmbh - - - - . 0.74 - 0.74
Expenses incurred on behalf of

- Lafarge SA - - - - 2.27 227
- Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd - - - - - 0.01 - 0.01
- Bazian Cement - - - - - 0.06 - 0.06
- Lafarge Emirates Cement - - - - - 0.16 B 0.16
- Holeim Technology (Singapore) PTE Lid - - - - - 1.00 - 1.00
- Lafarge Services Group - Paris - - - - - 0.14 - 0.14
- Mbeya Cement Company Ltd - - - - - 0.10 - 0.10
- Alsafwa Cement Company - - - - - .32 - 0.32
Loans given - - 0.04 0.04 - - -

Interest Payable and outstanding

- Nirma Limited 40.62 - - 40.62 131 - - 13.11
Outstanding amount payable

- Lafarge SA - - - - - 5.07 - 5.07
- Lafarge Asia Sdn Bhd - - - - - 3.80 - 3.80
- Nirma Limited 12.20 - - 12.20 16.20 - - 16.20
-Gaj Ambuja Cement (A unit of Ambuja Cement Limited) - - - - - 0.85 - 0.85
- ACC Limited - - - - - 046 . 0.46
- Ambuja Cement Limited - - - - - 1599 - 15.99
Outstanding amount receivable

Loans - - 111 111 - - L7 1.07
Provision against the receivables - - 1.29 1.29 - - 1.07 1.07

1. All transactions listed above are at arms length price and all the outstanding balances are unsecured.
2. Key Managerial Compensation breakup is as follow;

Compensation paid to key management person 2017-18 2016-17
- Short term 6.24 11.04
- Post retirement 0.34 1.35
Total 6.58 12.39

Professional services availed from relative of Key Management
Personnel 0.18 -




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation 1imited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")

Notes to consolidated financial statement

(Al awmounts are in Rs crores, unless otherwise stated)

41. Operating leases

Lease payments

(a) The Group has taken various residential and commercial
arrangements entered by Group meet criteria specified in Appendix C of Ind AS 17
embedded operating leases. The lease payments recognised in the statement of profit and loss is Rs. 38.53

Crores. (Previous year Rs. 43.56 Crores.)

premises under operating leases. Further, certain
and are classified as

(b) Future commitments of lease rentals on account of assets taken on non-cancellable operating lease are as

follows:
2017-18 2016-17
Less than one vear 15.07 16.79
Between one and five years 5.61 10.36
0.43 0.75

More than five years
21.11 27.90
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42, Financial instruments - Fair values and risk Tidligement

A Accounting dassification and fair values
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1sonable apy

‘Latarge India Limited”)

abilities, inciuding then fevels i the fair val

oximation of fair vajue

o

ue hierarcing It does o

Carrying Fair value
31 March 2018 T T T
INR WirtL FYTOC Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Totag
Financial assets —
Current investments 84437 - 84437 84437 SRR
Trade recervables - 41515 415.15 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 3354 3354
Other bank balances - 518 5.18
Loans - 080 0.80
Others - - 631.26 651,26 - -
844.37 - 1,105.93 1,950.30 844.37 - - m
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,368.80 4,368.80 4,368.80 368 R0
Trade pavables 666.43 666.43 - -
Others 475.72 475,72 - .
- - 5,510.95 5,510.95 - 1,368.80 - 1,368.80
Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2017 s —
INR FVTPL FVTOCQI Amortized Cost Total Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Current investments 412,19 - 41219 412.19 1219
Trade receivables - - 44422 444.22 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 71.75 7175
Other bank balances - 5.18 5.18
Loans - 1.99 1.99
Others - - 578.26 578.26 - -
Derivative asset 0.00 - - 0.00 - 0.00 .00
412,19 - 1,101.40 151359 412.19 0.00 - 41219
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,314.38 4,314.38 131438 4531438
Trade payables 739.99 E
Others - 400.28
Derivative Liability 0.08 - (.08 08
0.08 - 5,454.65 5,454.73 - 4,314.46 4,314.46




Nuvoceo Vistas Corporation ] imited (formerly known as '} afarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statement

(All amionsits ure in Rs crores, unless otherwise stated)

B. Financial risk management

The Groap has exposure to the following risks arising from finandial instraments.
* Credit risk ;

= Liquidity risk ; and

* Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of market risk on its financial performance. The Group’s risk
management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to se
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with same. Risk assessment and managenmie nt policies
and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changos in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Board of Dircectors ang
the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s risk assessment and management policies and processes.

ii. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in
the normal course of business.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is determined by the individual characteristics and specifications of each customer, The profile ot
the customer, including the market risk of the industry has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed throu gh
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants
credit terms in the normal course of business.

Summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Neither past due nor impaired 216.17 228.69
Past due but not impaired
Past due 1-180 days 145.16 156.50
Past due 181-365 days 29.03 26.50
Past due 1 to 2 years 16.87 18.28
More than 2 years 7.92 i4.25

415.15 444.22

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Group to determine credit losses.
Historical trends of impairment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macro economic
indicators affecting customers of the Group have not undergone any substantial change, the Group expects the historical trend of
minimal credit losses to continue. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due are still collectible in
full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The allowance at 31 March, 2017 and 31
March, 2018 related to several customers that may default on their payments to the Group and may not pay their outstanding
balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follow :

2017-18 2016-17
Balance as at beginning of the year 56.25 55.37
[mpairment loss recognised net of reversal 9.39 ) .88
Balance at the end of the year 65.64 S 5625

Cash and cash equivalents -
The Group held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial institutions. The credil worthiness of-
and financial institutions is evaluated by the management on an ongoing Lasis and is considered to be good. .




Nuvoce Vistas Corporation | imited {(formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statement

(Al amounts are in Rs crores. wiless otherwise stated)

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become dae. The Grou P Manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring, that it alwavs have sufficient liquidit_v to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and Stressed
conditions, witheut incurring u nacceptable losses or risk to the Grou p’s reputation.

The Group has obtained both fund based and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The Group also Constantly
monitors, as and when required, funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintain financial liquidity.
The Group also enjoys A1+ ratings from CRISIL on short term facilities from banks indicating very strong degree of safety regarding
timely payment of financial obligations and caries lowest credit risk.

Exposure to liguidity risk

The table below analyses the Grou p's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual matu rities for:
* All non derivative financial Habilities
* Derivative financial instruments for which the contractual maturites are essential for understandin g the timing of the cash flows.

Contractual cash flows

More than

As at 31 March 2018 Total lyearorless 1-2years 2.5 years
5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings 4,723.90 1,442.26 1,441.21 1,840.43
Other non-current financial lLiabilities 50.97 - 50.97 -
Trade payables 666.43 666.43 -
Other financial current liabilities 424.76 424.76 - -
Contractual cash fiows
As at 31 March 2017 Total lyearorless 1-2years  2-5years Msore thsan
year:

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Borrowings 5,063.91 340.02 L,442.26 3,281.63
Other non-current financial Liabilities 0.76 - 0.76 -
Trade payables 739.99 739.99 - -
Other financial current liabilities 399.52 399.52 - -

Derivative financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 0.08 0.08




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as “1 afarge India Limited")

Notes to consolidated financiai statement
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iv. Market risk
Market riskis the risk of joss of future earnings, fair vaiues or future cask fows that mav result from adverse changes in markel rates and prices such as iderest rates and for
RE & & i Gt

ve instruments as a result of such adverse <hanges in market rates and prices, Market rish

exchange rates) or in the price of market :
Hnancial instruments, all foreign cu rrency receivables and pavables and all short termr and Ig-term debt. The Group is exposed to market 1

risk and Interest rate risk

a. Currency risk
The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the profit and loss account and equity, where any transaction references more fran OV Currency or wher

assets/ Habilities are denominated in a currency other than the functiona rency of the entity.

Considering economic environment in which the Group operates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuation in exchange rates i those countries, The Tisks primasily relate ©

fluctuations in the foreign exchange rates of USD & FURO, on account ot pavables to foreign suppliers, for import of petcoke, gypsum and spares

The Group, as per its risk managenient policy, uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange exposure. The Group does not use derivative financial instraments o1

trading or speculative purposes.

Exposure to currency risk
T'he sunimary quantitative data about the Group’s exposure to currency risk as reported (o the management of the Group is as follows:

Aniounts in Rs (Crores) 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

EUR ush EUR USD
Accounts Receivable - - -
Accounts Payable 2.53 1.05 1.36 6.72
Net balance sheet exposure 253 1.05 1.36 6.72
Forward exchange contracts - - - -
Net exposure 2.53 1.05 1.36 6.72

Sensitivity analysis
A 10% strengthening / weakening of the respective foreign currencies with respect to tunctional currency of Group would result in increase or decrease in profit or loss and equity as
shown in table below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. The following

analysis has been worked out based on the exposures as of the date of statements of financial positior:.

Profit or loss

Effect in INR Crores Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2018

EUR 0.25) 0.25
usD (0.11) 0.11

Profit or loss

Effect in INR Crores Strengthening Weakening
31 March 2017

EUR (0.14) 0.14
usD (0.67) 0.67

b. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to market risk
for changes in interest rates relates to fixed deposits and borrowings from financial institutions. For details of the Group’s short-term and long term loans and borrowings, including interest

rate profiles, Refer to Note 18 and 22 of these financial statements.
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43 Hedge accounting
TOSUTE I TesPect of mmport of goods and services from tme i e on a 12 months rollis
ments are denominated i the same Carrency

s forecasted/ firm toreign currency exg b
Group @ses forward exchange contracts (o hedge its currency risk arising from such impaorts Hedg!
rade. Maturity of hedging instruments are less than 12 months in previous vear,

Toe Group perforivs nedging on
inw

imports 4 2
The forelgn exchange forward vontract halances v ary with the level of expected foreigr ciirrency transactions and changes in foreign exchange forward rates

Partical 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 7

articutars Assets Liabilities Assets Liabm_;

Fair value of foreign currency forward contracts designated as hedging instruments i N 0.00 N f
: 008

There are no forward contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2018. The cash flow hedges of the tirm commitments during the year ended 31 March 2017 were.assessed to he

highly etfertive




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statement

(Al armounts are i Rs croves, wnless otherise stited)

44. Netting off disclosure

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table presents the recoonised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting
3 4 g
h 2018 and 31 March 2017.

arrangements and other similar agreements but not offset, as at 27 Nay

Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off |presented in financial

Particulars Amounts in balance sheet statements
31 March 2018 T
Financial assets
Trade receivables 415.63 (0.48) 41545
Derivative asset - - -
Total 415.63 (0.48) 415.15

Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
Gross Gross amount net off |presented in financial

Particulars Amounts in balance sheet statements
31 March 2017
Financial assets
Trade receivables 444.47 (0.25) 444.22
Derivative asset 0.00 - 0.00
Total 444.47 (0.25) 444.22
Financial liabilities
Derivative Liabilities 0.08 - 0.08
Total 0.08 B 0.08

Offsetting arrangements

(i) CFA agents
The Group engages the services of CFA agents for selling the cement. As per the terms of the agreement, Group has a right to
offset balances with CFA against debtors balances if debtor has not paid for a period of 90 days. Hence such amounts have been
offset in the balance sheet.

(ii) Collateral against borrowings

Refer note 18 for property, plant & equipment and other intangible assets provided as collateral against borrowings 2




Nuwvoco Vistas Corporation Limited {fm’me;iy known as “Lafarge India Limited")
Notes to consolidated financial statement

LA amonnis ase o1 Ry crores, unless otherwise stated)

45. Capital management

Fhe Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain mvestor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business The Group carefuly monitors cash and hank balances, deplovment of surplus funds and regularly assess apy

debt requirements

The Group's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.
As at 31 March As at 31 March

2018 2017
Total borrowings along with accrued interest 4,368.80 431438
Less - Cash and bank balances & Current Investments (877.91) (489.12)
Adjusted net debt 3,490.89 3,825 26
Equity 150.00 15G.00
Other Equity 3,967.26 3,798.95
Total Equity 4,117.26 3,948.95

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 0.85 0.97
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47. Contingent Liabilities

-

Asat 31 March  As at 31 March

Contingent Lj

ies not provided for in respect of:

= 2018 2017

Cerms agamst the Group not acknow ledged as debts: -

+ Diispotod demands in respoct of Sales Tax by various sakes tax and \ Via o 3Lgs 38 Rh

b. Disputed demand in respect of Entry Tax by various tax authorities 42.82 36.98

¢ Disputed dentand in respect of Excise Duty 17372 167.46

d. Disputed demand m respect of Service Tax 1.32 2.51

e Stamp Duty paid under protest for change of name from GKW to LECL 1.80 1.80

£. Disputed demands in respect of Custom duties 1444 14.44

g. In respect of income Tax 220.65 234.47

h Other claims 22.91 20.57

Against these, pavments under protest/adjustments made by the Group 149.44 96.35
i. The State of Chhattisgarh has filed a Revision Application challenging the adjudication order of the

District Registrar and Collector of Stamps; Janjgir -Champa for alleged under aivation of the

properties, which the Company acquired from Raymond Ltd. Against this, Raymond itd. has filed a Amount not Amount not

Special Leave Petition before the Honorable Supreme Court, which has stayed the proceedings before  determinable determinable

the Board of Revenue.

The Collector of Stamps, Raipur has commenced enquiry proceedings under Section 47 (A)(3) of the

indian Stamp Act, 1899 questioning the amount of stamp duty paid by The Tata lron and Steel

L‘ompany Lﬂ;ﬂr}x::teg ("HSCO)}:)n t?;ns;fer o‘iylAl’w;)rnano\‘al.vle };]ropliri.es dtls(”}];l-d;i] tfum I[?(é?l is) the Amount not Amount not

(\ompan). 3 nmpan) as fi 5( a Writ Petition in the onorm‘b ¢ .lé? Court o» ilaspur, determinable determinable

Chhattisgarh challenging the enquiry commenced by the Collector of Stamps. The matter is pending

before the High Court,

The Group's liability, if at all arises, in both the above cases, is restricted to 50% by v irtue of business

transfer agreement between Lafarge and Raymond Ltd/TISCO. Amount not Amount not

determinable determinable

iv. In June 2012, the Competition Commission of India (CCD) passed an Order levying a penalty of Rs. 490 crores on the Company in

connection with a complaint filed by the Builders Association of India against leading cement companies (including the Company) for
aileged violation of certain provisions of the Competition Act, 2002. The Company filed an appeal before the Competition Appellate
Tribunal (COMPAT) for setting aside the said Order of CCL The COMPAT granted stay on levying the penalty imposed on the Company
by CCT against depasit of 10% of the penalty amount. In December 2015, the COMPAT finally set aside the said Order of CCT and
remanded back to CCI for fresh adjudication of the issues and passing of fresh Order. It also allowed the Company to withdraw the
amount of [0% deposit kept with the CCIL. However, in August 2016 the case was reheard by CCland it passed an Order levying a penalty
of Rs. 490 crures on the Company. The Com pany had filed an appeal against the Order before the COMPAT. The COMPAT has granted a
stay on the CCl Order against a deposit of 10% of the penalty amount, which has been deposited since. The matter pending with
COMPAT has been transferred to the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (NCLAT) and the appeal of the Company is pending
before NCLAT. Based on advise of external legal counsel and the rights avadable with the Company, no provision is considered
necessary

Vide letter F.No.13016/49/2008-CA-I dated 15th/16th November, 2012, Ministry of Coal had de-allocated the Dahegaon Makardhokra Tv
Coal Block allocated to the Joint Venture Partners and had ordered invocation of bank guarantee of Rs. 2.55,93,000. The said order was
challenged by all joint venture partners, through separate Writ Petitions before Hon'ble High Court of delhi and a stay was granted
against invocation of bank guarantee. However, in view of Suprement Court orders datedt 25th August, 2014 and 24th September, 2014 in
WP (Crl) No. 120/2012, the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi through its judgement dated 30th October, 2014, did not provide relief of
cancellation of de-allocation of coal block and disposed of the all the three writ petitions of JV partners with a direction to Ministry of Coal
to take a decision in respect of each individual case whether bank guarantees ought to be invoked or released. In pursuance, Ministry of
Coal vide its letier F.No.1301 6/17/2014-CA-I (VOL. I1I) dated 04th August, 2015 ordered invocation of Bank Guarantee of Rs. 2,55,93000, -
- which has been challenged by all JV partners through separate writ petitions before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. High Court of Delhi
through its orders dated October 16,2015 and October 20, 2015 was pleased to grant stay against any coercive steps subject to Bank
Guarantee being kept alive.
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49. Details of dues to micro and smali enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

As at31 March  As at 31 March

2018 2017
i) The principal aimount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end
of each accounting vear
Principal amount due to micro and smali enterprises 5.9% 5.30
Interest due on above 0.22
i) The amount of ieferest paid by the buver in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with
the amounts of the pay ment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting
vear
Principat 0.78 0.07
Interest 0.01 0.00
i Theamount of ‘nierest due and pavable for the period of delay in making payment (which been 0.22 0.07
paid but bevond the appointed dav during the vear) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act, 2006
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting vear 3.23 0.25

v)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006,




Nuv oco Vistas (ot
Notes to consolidated financies

"Lafarge Tndia Limited™

INR crores. waless ofiterivie stated

L8[ cesnennts ar

50. Business combination

Nirchem Coment Limited (Nirchem) w EERIN svear, Noiova

idiary of Nima Limited to engage i the cement business in the pre

e 1

wf acy

the cement and related business of Lafarge

ntted (Lafarge) and due 1o vanous approvals and commeraal reasens, it acquired such business ol afarge (the Acquisitio

shares of Lafarge fram it shareholders in
Business Combinations by pplving the acquis:
Board, Under the acquisstion method, all ident

accoanted forin the consolidated financial statements ot Nirchem in

revious year, the acy

sition of Lafarge by Nirche e wth

nethod. The consolidated finan al Slatemen at-tth October, 2076 prepared by management i accordance with bnd AS 110§ * Deer

able assets including gibles, Labilities and ent habilitios of Lafarge were measured and a. counted af the

vetug of 1

vahies have boen doterm mad hean indenerdont vatiusy The seesss o the vost of the accuisihor over the acguired assets, Hahifits

Calculation of Goodwill

Consideration Paid
Net Assets acquired
Goodwill

Erstwhile acquired Goodwill in books of Lafarge
{Additional Goodwill recognised

Subsequently, pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation under Sections 230-232 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with ¢ ompanies {Compioreise Arrangement and
Amalgamation) Rules, 2016, sanctioned by the Company law tribunal of Mumibai branvh and filed with the Registrar of Companies (RoC) on 19th Apnil 2017, Nirchem Cement ; imited has heon
amalgamated with Nuvoco Vistas Torporation Limited (formerly known as | afarge india Limited”) w e . 4th October 201 6, the Appointed Date,

By virtue of guidance provided in App C of Ind AS 103, the above amalgamation 1s a “commor control business combination” given the combining entities {Nirchent and Latarzet are hoth ultimatel,
controlled by the same ultimate parent (Nirma Limited) before and after the amalgamation, Accordingly, the business combination has been accounted for using the pooling of interest methed wherein the
assets and liabilities of the combmmg entities are reflected at their carrying amounts as specified in the scheme i.e. values as determined under IND AS 103 Business Combinations, which i tumn have peen
pooled from the Consolidated Financial Statements of Nirchem as at 4th October, 2016

Calculation of Capital Reserve

[Particulars Amount Note ':ﬂ_}
Investment in the books of Nirchem (8,207.50) |
Equity share capital of Nirchem cancelled 3,000.00 - ol
Issue of new equity shares of Nuvoco as per merger scheme (150.00) ‘

Nuvoco old share capital reversed 456,41 I
IND AS 103 carrying values derived from Nirchem CFS (incremental values): B

Tangible assets 1.610.19 |Refer Note 2

Intangible assets 1.576.51 |Refer Note 4 T
Goodwill 1,694.27 | Refer Note 4 -
Deferred tax liability 103363 Refer Note 38 |
Capital reserve on Merger (1,053.75) _-_M‘]




Nuvoco Vistas Corporation Limited (formerly known as ) afarge India }omitedn
Notes to consolidated fin. noi,

womeni

AN aprromnts e e R poges cpdeoss ofhericis stafed)

51. idisclosures required by Indian Ace ounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 - Provisions

e

! .. . Dealer discount Indirect taxes and Provision for

] el Site Restotation expense N s . . Y X Total

| Particulars provisions titigations contractors’ charges

| 2017-18 201617 | 2017 ] 7 : 01738 T ST
- - 2017-18 201617 201718 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017 .38

{Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 23.81 64.80 193,05 92 23.24 18.92 304})(35 BT

j;\ddmondi provision made duting the vear 6.64 94 10.28 16.20 2.60 4.32 ‘Tﬁ% T

[Amounts used during the vo (1.24) (0.28) (50.91) (1.13) (0.57) - - (5328)] (5433

Amounts written back during the vear - - (0.62) - (17.19) (0.50) - (17.76) (050}

Carrying amount at the end of the year # 29.21 23.81 91.21 64.80 185.06 193.05 25.84 23.24 331.32 304.90

# This includes current and non current portion.

i. Site Restoration expense

The Group provides for the expenses to reclaim the quarties used for mining. The tota! estimate of reclamation expenses is apportioned over the estimate

made based on the minerals extracted d uring the year. Mines reclamation expenses are ircurred on an ongoing basis and until the closure of the mine, Tt

the nature of reclamation and the estimate of reclamation expenditure,

ii. Dealer discount provisions

I'he provision for discounts is on account of varjous promotion and incentive schemes proposed to be announced to dealers on products sold by the
¥ P 3

of mineral reserves apd a provision is
he actual expenses mav va ry based on

Group. The provision is based on the

historic data/ estimated figures of discounts passed on. The timing and amount of the cash flows that will arise will be determined as and when these schemes are formalised and pav-oife

approved by management, which is generally 12 to 18 months,

iii. Indirect taxes and legal cases

Provision tor indirect tax and legal cases includes disputed cases of excise tax, Value added tax, sales tax, entrv tax and other disputed legal cases.
4 F 4

iv. Provision for contractor charges

Provision for contractor's charges pertains to gratuity amount payable by contractor to its employees which as per the terms of the contract shali be reimbursed by the Group,

Note - 52

The Company had instalied a Fiy Ash classifier at its Mejia Cement Plant in earlier years and has a claim of Rs 12.22 Crores (Previous vear Rs.12.22 Crores) on Damodar Valley Corporation
(DVC) towards their share of the capital expenditure on such Fly Ash classifier in terms of the agreement, which along with certain operational settlements are currently under discussion with
DVC. Pending resolution on the matters, the Company has not recognized the above claims in its books. Further, the management is confident that the use of the Fly Ash classifier and

operational settlements shal! be am icably resolved with the party.

Note - 53

Exceptional items of Rs. 17.81 crores, ircurred in previous financial vear, is in relation 1o the orders of Competition Commission of India dated 2 February 2016 and 30 March 2015,

Note - 54

As per the linut specified under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was required to spend Rs 5.54 crores (Previous year Rs 7.73 crores) during the year on account of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). However, the actual amount spent during the vear amounts to Rs 5.93 crores (Previous vear Rs 6.43 crores) out of which Rs Nil (Previous year Rs (.61

crores) has been incurred in relation to its ongoing projects which has been capitalised and the balance of Rs 5.93 crores ( Previous vear Rs 5.82 crores) has been accounted in the statement of

profit and loss as CSR expenditure.
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